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30 September 2014

Hon. Leon Bignell MP
Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries
Minister for Forests
Minister for Tourism
Minister for Recreation and Sport
Minister for Racing

Hon. Geoff Brock MP
Minister for Regional Development
Minister for Local Government

Hon. Ian Hunter MLC
Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation
Minister for Water and the River Murray
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation

Dear Ministers,

I am pleased to present the PIRSA annual report for the year ended 30 June 2014. The report has 
been prepared under Part 3 Section 12(6) of the Public Sector Act 2009, in accordance with the Act’s 
accompanying regulations as well as the financial reporting requirements of the Public Finance and Audit 
Act 1987.

Yours sincerely

Scott Ashby

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
PRIMARY INDUSTRIES AND REGIONS SA
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Primary Industries and Regions SA is a major economic development agency and has the lead role in  
ensuring the prosperity of the agricultural sector and regional areas in South Australia.

Since becoming Chief Executive of the department in February 2013, I have been impressed by the drive 
and commitment of PIRSA staff. As an agency we are meeting industry challenges and supporting regional 
development and the growth of primary industries. Our work protects and enhances the State’s premium 
food and wine brand, supports our industries and regional communities and is vital to South Australia’s 
economic prosperity.

During the year Government changes resulted in PIRSA’s role expanding. The department continued 
to support the Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries and Minister for Forestry. It also took on an 
increased role in regional development supporting the new Minister for Regional Development to deliver 
new opportunities to the regions. This will include delivering the $15 million Regional Development Fund 
grants program and the $10 million Jobs Accelerator Fund. 

Our work is guided by South Australia’s Strategic Plan targets and our leadership of the Premium Food 
and Wine from our Clean Environment strategic priority. South Australia is known internationally as a 
producer of exceptionally high quality food and wine. The priority seeks to capitalise on this reputation in 
order to capture a greater share of the growing international demand for safe and secure food supplies.

The strategic priority was progressed this year by the Strategy and Engagement division through the  
delivery of an Action Plan, which provides a blueprint to foster growth in the food and wine industry 
through three themes – Build our Brand, Grow our Capability and Secure Production. The plan was  
developed in response to extensive industry consultation and is aimed at addressing a number of the  
opportunities and challenges within the sector.

The department has also continued to develop relationships with China and other key markets to realise 
opportunities for South Australian food and wine. 

The Agribusiness and Regions division managed the signing of a memorandum of understanding with  
the Shandong Department of Agriculture for regular exchanges between the two departments. It also 
developed the China Agribusiness Initiative and Action Plan.

It also worked with Wine Australia to jointly deliver Savour Australia 2013, Australia’s global wine forum. 
The event was held in September 2013 and attracted more than 800 national and international delegates.

The Fisheries and Aquaculture division is a national leader in fisheries and aquaculture management. One 
of its key achievements for industry was its involvement in PIRSA’s tuna industry 90-day projects. PIRSA 
worked with the Environment Protection Authority and the Australian Southern Bluefin Tuna Association 
to improve coordination of government services. The outcome was a significant reduction in red tape 
which the industry has estimated could save it up to $700 000 a year.

The division was also key to the success of Adelaide hosting the World Aquaculture Society’s annual 
conference for the first time. The conference, staged in June, attracted 2000 delegates and was one of the 
largest conferences to be held in Adelaide. 

Chief Executive’s Overview
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Biosecurity SA’s critical role in the protection of South Australia’s status as a producer of premium food 
and wine was in the spotlight this year. The division, working with producers and communities, eradicated 
two outbreaks of Queensland fruit fly in the Riverland and four of Mediterranean fruit fly in the  
metropolitan area. The prompt lifting of the quarantines imposed due to the outbreaks was testament to 
the concerted effort by PIRSA and meant that Riverland citrus can be exported in the 2014 season.

The South Australian Research and Development Institute (SARDI) continued its world-leading research, 
which underpins our safe, ethical and secure production systems. It supported the development and  
commercialisation of new cereal, pulse and pasture varieties, helping to build capacity in our $4.3 billion 
grains and $3.6 billion livestock sectors.

SARDI’s work for the seafood industry included the production of one million native oyster spat to help 
expand our $243 million aquaculture industry.

Rural Solutions SA was central to the agreement with the Australian Government on the South Australian 
River Murray Sustainability Program National Partnership Agreement. This resulted in $265 million for  
irrigation industry and regional economic development programs. The division also launched the soil  
modification and improvement program New Horizons, which will apply advances in soil science and  
management to increase potential broadacre agricultural production by up to $800 million a year.

Our Corporate Services division continued to implement a consistent cost recovery framework across 
PIRSA and assisted in the delivery of regional financial support programs. It also managed the construction 
of new regional facilities. 

In 2013–14 PIRSA’s work was based on five building blocks, as outlined in our Corporate Plan. It  
committed to:

Build capability to ensure our regions consist of food, wine and fibre industries that are  
contemporary, efficient, competitive and resilient.      

Secure production to ensure that ready, reliable and sustainable resources are available for industry 
growth and development.      

Expand markets to ensure that South Australian food, wine and fibre products have unrestricted  
access to new and existing markets.              

Grow regions to ensure regional areas contribute to the economic strength and social fabric of  
South Australia.          

Perform well to ensure PIRSA is a modern, flexible and responsive organisation that values its people 
while delivering outcomes for South Australians.          

All divisions have a role in achieving these goals, which remain central to our Corporate Plan to 2015.

In order to do this, PIRSA will continue its focus on creating an organisation that is adaptive, underpinned 
by good governance and sound risk management, willing to respond to change and, above all, is resilient 
and ready to meet the challenges and expectations of its stakeholders.

Scott Ashby 
Chief Executive

Chief Executive’s Overview
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As at 30 June 2014, PIRSA was organised as  
outlined below:

Agribusiness and Regions comprised  
the Agribusiness Development, Regional  
Development and PIRSA Policy groups. The  
division aims to grow the economic contribution 
of the agriculture, food, wine and forestry  
industries and regional South Australia through 
the development and execution of a market- 
driven approach to industry. Strategies, policies 
and projects are developed and executed  
collaboratively with regions and industry and 
other government agencies to ensure the  
benefits are broadly implemented. 

Biosecurity SA develops and implements  
policies, legislation, regulatory frameworks,  
surveillance, preparedness and response  
programs. These protect the economy,  
environment, communities and human health 
from the negative impacts associated with the 
entry, establishment or spread of pests, diseases 
and contaminants. Biosecurity SA also has a  
food safety role in primary industry production.

Fisheries and Aquaculture is responsible 
for the ecologically sustainable development  
of the State’s aquatic resources. The division  
develops and implements policies, legislation  
and management frameworks and conducts  
education, monitoring and compliance programs 
to ensure the long-term sustainability of the 
aquatic environment and allow for the continued 
development and competitiveness of this vital 
primary industry.

Rural Solutions SA provides commercial  
services to private and public sector  
organisations in South Australia, nationally  
and internationally. It delivers agribusiness and 
environmental solutions to community, industry 

and government through partnerships,  
engagement and innovation. It is a key delivery 
agent for programs and projects for PIRSA with 
a focus on commercial services, major programs 
and regional customer service centres

South Australian Research and  
Development Institute (SARDI) delivers 
practical, industry-focused solutions to primary 
producers, commercial partners, aquatic and 
natural resources managers and other bioscience 
partners. The research strives for positive  
ecological outcomes to conserve our marine, 
fresh water, soil and plant resources. From the 
sea and land to the consumer’s table, SARDI 
scientists are creating opportunities for  
farmers, food producers and other industries 
such as fisheries and aquaculture to adapt to 
biosecurity, market access, climate variability,  
environmental challenges and other issues.

Strategy and Engagement drives the  
strategic direction of the agency and its profile 
within the South Australian community. It leads 
and implements an action plan for the  
development of the State Government’s Premium 
Food and Wine from our Clean Environment 
strategic priority. The directorate consisted of 
three groups: Premium Food and Wine from our 
Clean Environment Project Team, Organisational 
Strategy and Development and Strategic  
Communications and Engagement.

Corporate Services provides governance and 
business support services to PIRSA. This enables 
PIRSA to deliver on its commitment to the State 
Government priority of Premium Food and 
Wine from our Clean Environment and the State 
Strategic Plan. Services include people governance 
and assets, financial and prudential management, 
information and communication technology and 
risk management and integrity.

Organisational Structure
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Organisation Chart
PIRSA Executive at 30 June 2014
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OUR PURPOSE

To enable primary industries and regions to grow, innovate and maximise their  
economic growth potential.

OUR ROLE

Primary Industries and Regions South Australia has the lead role in ensuring the prosperity of regional 
South Australia and the food and agribusiness sector.

We involve and engage with all levels of government, industry, academia and the broader community. This 
ensures we make good decisions, have clear and relevant policies, plan and implement effective programs, 
promote efficient and sustainable resource use and broker shared responsibility.

OUR PLANNING FRAMEWORK

Our work is guided by industry needs, government priorities, our legislative and policy mandate and  
community values and aspirations. 

OUR VALUES

The South Australian public sector values were developed by more than 600 public sector employees  
of varying professions. They are a guide to the behaviour and practices expected of all public sector 
employees, regardless of position, technical expertise or location, and reflect the public sector’s focus on 
the ever-changing needs of South Australians and the place of Government in helping to grow the State’s 
prosperity and wellbeing.

The public sector values will be embedded across the agency to ensure we deliver high-quality services 
and support to South Australians and empower our people to make the department a responsive and 
dynamic place in which to work.

PIRSA’s role
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Agribusiness and Regions

• Facilitated the signing of a MOU with the  
 Shandong Department of Agriculture for regular 
 exchanges to occur between the two departments, 
  whereby an annual schedule of activities under the  
 areas of collaboration is established and executed. 

• Developed a China Agribusiness Initiative and  
 Action Plan for 2014.

• Implemented the intergovernmental agreement  
 for the national drought program reform.  A pilot  
 project is being implemented in partnership  
 with industry to build enhanced farm business 
 management capabilities for farm business  
 resilience and preparedness for periods of  
 hardship.

Biosecurity SA

• Eradicated two incursions of Queensland fruit  
 fly from the Riverland and four incursions of  
 Mediterranean fruit fly from metropolitan  
 Adelaide.

• Delivered 24 workshops in emergency  
 management to create a pool of 600 trained  
 staff from PIRSA and other agencies to ensure 
 PIRSA can mobilise an adequate first response 
 team in the event of a major biosecurity disease 
 outbreak.

Fisheries and Aquaculture

• Developed smartphone applications to provide 
 recreational fishers with up-to-date information 
 and commercial fishers with electronic reporting 
 arrangements.

• Successfully conducted a voluntary commercial 
 catch and effort reduction program for five fishing 
 sectors to ensure the ongoing sustainability of 
 South Australia’s fisheries following the  
 introduction of marine parks. Further  
 negotiations with the last sector, Central Zone 
 Abalone, are continuing.

Rural Solutions SA

• Reached agreement and commenced delivery 
 of the South Australian River Murray Sustainability 
 Program (SARMS) National Partnership  
 Agreement, $265 million of federal funds including 
 two components: the $240 million Irrigation  
 Industry Improvement Program (3IP) and  
 $25 million for regional economic development.

• Initiated the New Horizons soil modification and 
 improvement program to facilitate the potential of 
 significantly increasing South Australia’s agricultural 
 production through the application of  advances in  
 soil science and management.  

SARDI

• In collaboration with BP, CSIRO, University of  
 Adelaide and Flinders University, initiated a  
 $20 million, four-year research program in the 
 Great Australian Bight.

• Supported the development and  
 commercialisation of new cereal, pulse and  
 pasture varieties, which built capacity in SA’s  
 $4.3 billion grains and $3.6 billion livestock  
 sectors, as well as key innovations and technical 
 support for the State’s growing $460 million  
 seafood industry.

• Produced one million native oyster spat to help 
 diversify and expand South Australia’s $243 million  
 aquaculture sector.  

Strategy and Engagement

• Developed and released the Premium Food and 
 Wine from our Clean Environment Action Plan 
 following extensive and ongoing industry and  
 community consultation.

• Delivered training in business improvement  
 processes which led to a reduction in red tape 
 within PIRSA, benefiting customers and industry. 

• Implemented a marketing program for South  
 Australian food and wine.

At a Glance - PIRSA’s Highlights for 2013-14
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Corporate Services

• Implemented the PIRSA First Program, which has 
 mobilised and/or transitioned excess staff.

• Established a comprehensive PIRSA fraud and  
 corruption framework that included the Fraud 
 Control Plan with the PIRSA Fraud and the  
 Corruption Prevention Policy and Whistleblowers  
 Policy.

At a Glance - PIRSA’s Highlights for 2013-14
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Performance Summaries 

PIRSA is a key economic development agency of the South Australian Government and works across a  
diverse range of industry sectors, including food manufacturing, agriculture, livestock, forestry, fishing and 
aquaculture.

South Australia’s Strategic Plan (SASP) provides an important blueprint for our State that identifies the 
aspirations for our future success.

The State Government’s Seven Strategic Priorities for South Australia’s future represent areas where we 
can make the most difference to the lives of everyday working people and to the future prosperity of our 
State. They are aimed at helping industries change and grow, at protecting and creating jobs, and at building 
a better quality of life for people.

Seven Strategic Priorities

• Creating a Vibrant City

• An Affordable Place to Live

• Every Chance for Every Child

• Growing Advanced Manufacturing

• Safe Communities, Healthy Neighbourhoods

• Realising the Benefits of the Mining Boom for All

• Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment

PIRSA’s 2013–14 Annual Report has been laid out to provide context to the public and Parliament about 
how PIRSA contributed to the targets within the SASP and the State Strategic Priorities, particularly as lead 
agency for the Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment strategic priority, and contributing 
agency to Growing Advanced Manufacturing.

Each chapter is introduced with the relevant strategic visions taken from the SASP, with each of the  
highlights in the Performance Summaries aligned to a goal and target.
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Performance Summary: Agribusiness and Regions

In 2013–14 the Agribusiness and Regions division comprised the Agribusiness Development, Regional 
Development and PIRSA Policy groups. The division aims to grow the economic contribution of the 
agriculture, food, wine and forestry industries and regional South Australia through the development 
and execution of a market-driven approach to industry. Strategies, policies and projects are developed 
and executed collaboratively with regions and industry and other government agencies to ensure the 
benefits are broadly implemented. 

The division drives and supports the South Australian Government’s strategic priorities of Premium 
Food and Wine from our Clean Environment and Growing Advanced Manufacturing. It also plays a key 
role in coordinating the development of policies, programs and regulatory reforms that will promote 
investment in regions, agribusiness, increasing the productivity, sustainability and efficiency of our food 
systems, grow the value chain of food supply in South Australia and increase the recognition of the  
intrinsic value of our healthy, natural environment and grow our regions.

The Agribusiness Development Group works with Food SA, the Regional Food Industry Association, the 
South Australian Wine Industry Association and Primary Producers SA to grow the value of food and 
wine to the South Australian economy.  The group also manages the SARDI Food Technology program 
that drives innovation in food production and processing. This program supports both strategic priorities. 

The Agribusiness Development Group provides PIRSA’s capability to deliver individual facilitation of key 
agribusiness and enterprise projects through an account management framework.

PIRSA’s key mission is to be the lead agency supporting the prosperity and sustainability of South  
Australia’s primary industries and regions by leveraging opportunities. To assist with that it has set up a 
team of seven agribusiness account managers chosen for their expertise and key relationships with their 
industry sectors. 

The members of this team are vital contact points for businesses, each with expertise to support  
industry development and facilitate trade, market development and market access, as well as  
championing SA’s premium position. 

They act as a single point of contact within the State Government for businesses and are able to guide 
industry through government processes while providing a deep understanding of the agribusiness  
sector, as well as access to PIRSA’s unrivalled network of business, investment, research and  
development contacts. 

The agribusiness account managers serve the food manufacturing, forestry, grains, horticulture, meat and 
livestock, seafood and wine sectors.

Key focus areas include:

• account management of individual agribusiness enterprises

• investment attraction and support through:

  >  identifying and matching potential development opportunities with investors

  >  providing relevant market data and research

  >  providing investor familiarisation programs
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Performance Summary: Agribusiness and Regions

• development and implementation of through-chain development initiatives

• trade development through:

  >  providing market information and advice

  >  advising on targeted market programs including value chain development projects.

The Trade Development team leads the development and implementation of trade initiatives that will help 
agribusiness industries access high-value markets and increase exports of premium food and wine from 
South Australia’s clean environment. In particular, the team is responsible for delivering the $2.5 million 
China Agribusiness Initiative and Action Plan over the next three years. It centres on:

• More South Australian companies exporting more to China.

• More Chinese investment in South Australian agribusinesses to help scale up and modernise  
 companies.

• Increased agribusiness research collaboration and technical exchange with China.

• Strategic relationships with Chinese governments to establish and enhance platforms for business 
 engagement.

Trade Development team members work closely with account managers and regional managers to 
streamline the information flow between South Australian agribusinesses and overseas partners to ensure 
consistency and quality on sectoral capabilities and trade opportunities.

The role of the Regional Development group is to support competitive, vibrant and self-reliant regional 
economies and communities and work to give the regions a stronger voice in government.

PIRSA recognises the significant role regions play in our State economy and provides them with access to 
the breadth of expertise within government and across industry sectors around the State. 

The Regional Development group leads the development and implementation of integrated cross-sector, 
cross-government and regionally focused policies, strategies and programs, all with the focus of building 
regional capacity to support economic development and population growth. It works alongside regional 
stakeholders to provide advice and information to influence policy development.

Key focus areas of the Regional Development group include:

• regional economic development

• regional infrastructure investment

• regional development policy and government decision-making

• regional planning, coordination and governance structures.

PIRSA’s Policy group coordinates and drives the agency’s involvement in a number of strategic policy 
areas, including productivity and innovation, food, trade and investment and resource management. This 
group supports PIRSA efforts in delivering the Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment 
strategic priority and growing our regions with policy toolkits and evidence-based advice. National and 
State coordination and policy advice are functions that also underpin PIRSA efforts to enable primary 
industries and regions to continue to grow and innovate. 
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Performance Summary: Agribusiness and Regions

Major Outcomes Achieved

Our Community

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Released the Regional Statement for South Australia.

• Facilitated regional consultation by the Regional Communities Consultative Council on the Regional 
 Statement for South Australia and supported its work program that focused on identifying opportunities  
 from the seven State Government strategic priorities.

• The Local Government Grants Commission allocated Commonwealth financial assistance grants to 
 local governing authorities throughout the State.

• The Outback Communities Authority managed the provision of, and promoted improvements in,  
 public services and facilities for outback communities.

• Provided Community Service Obligation funding to support ForestrySA’s management of public use  
 of Mount Lofty Ranges and Mid North forests and biodiversity values, and community fire protection.

Our Prosperity

Goal: South Australia has a resilient, innovative economy.

Target 35: Economic growth. 

• Awarded $5.5 million to support four projects through the Riverland Sustainable Futures Fund that 
 will generate 26 new jobs with a project investment of approximately $16.4 million.

• Awarded $849 101 to four projects through the Upper Spencer Gulf and Outback Enterprise Zone 
 Fund that will generate a total investment of $4 million.

• Facilitated a major workforce development initiative, the Eyre Peninsula Workforce Development  
 Program, with Agrifood Skills Australia and the Department of Further Education, Employment,  
 Science and Technology (DFEEST).

• Funded two projects identified from the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the  
 State Government, Local Government Association of SA and the Australian Government to establish  
 a place-based approach to regional economic development in the Upper Spencer Gulf.

• Supported the Limestone Coast region to deliver an economic diversification program.

• Facilitated the Fujian Department of Oceans and Fisheries and Department of Agriculture’s visit  
 to South Australia and jointly identified areas of interest for future collaboration. 
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Performance Summary: Agribusiness and Regions

• Established an agribusiness subcommittee to drive a government-to-government relationship between 
 South Australia and Shandong, research and development exchanges, sharing and promoting trade and 
 investment opportunities.

• Facilitated the signing of a MOU with the Shandong Department of Agriculture for regular exchanges 
 to occur between the two departments, whereby an annual schedule of activities under the areas of 
 collaboration is established and executed. 

• Developed a series of agriculture investment profiles with Invest in SA to promote strategic  
 investment opportunities in the agribusiness sector.

• Supported the South Australian Forest Industry Advisory Board in its development of an Industry 
 Policy Statement and blueprint for the future.

• Facilitated industry investment into clean technology and energy-efficient production and the use  
 of timber-based renewable resources for energy production.

• Supported Stage 2 analysis of local industry readiness to take up new technology and consultation 
 with the industry globally, particularly in northern Europe as part of the VTT Cellulose Fibre Chain 
 Study.

• Supported the development of a collaborative project to support a forestry cluster in the Limestone 
 Coast region to advance the outcomes of the Cellulose Fibre Project.

• Developed and released the guidelines for the enhanced Regional Development Fund with $15 million 
 per year from 2014–15.

• Funded seven projects from the Food and Wine Co-Innovation Cluster program in the pilot regions of 
 the Murraylands and Riverland and the Limestone Coast to the total value of $487 000.

Target 37: Total Exports.

• Developed a China Agribusiness Initiative and Action Plan for 2014.

• Developed a joint trade activities calendar for China in conjunction with Food SA and SA Wine  
 Industry Association.

Goal: We develop and maintain a sustainable mix of industries across the State.

Target 39:  Competitive business environment.

• Established a Grains Research and Development Scheme under the Primary Industry Funding Schemes  
 Act 1998 to replace collection arrangements under the Wheat Marketing Act 1989.

• Completed deregulation of the grains industry with the repeal of the Wheat Marketing Act 1989.



18

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 3 - 1 4

Performance Summary: Agribusiness and Regions

Target 40: Food industry.

• The South Australian Government provided a submission to the Agricultural Competitiveness  
 White Paper to boost agriculture’s productivity and profitability.

• Delivered the 2013 Food and Wine Industry Scorecards.

• Developed a Farm Business Management Skills training program for dairy farmers with Primary  
 Producers SA.

• Worked with the baking industry, meat processors, FoodSA and dairy manufacturers to establish  
 and undertake DFEEST-funded workforce development projects in each sector.

• Established a food safety and integrity partnership between PIRSA and the Fujian Department  
 of Agriculture.

• Updated the Wine, a Partnership program through the South Australian Wine Industry Council.

Goal: South Australia has a sustainable population.

Target 46: Regional population levels.

• Delivered regional economic development projects under the Riverland Sustainable Futures Fund, 
 and Upper Spencer Gulf and Outback Enterprise Zone Fund, and with Regional Development  
 Australia funding. This supported the target of increasing regional populations outside Greater  
 Adelaide by 20 000 to 320 000 or more by 2020.

Our Environment 

Goal: We adapt to the long-term physical changes that climate change presents.

Target 62: Climate change adaptation.

• Implemented the intergovernmental agreement for the national drought program reform. A pilot 
 project is being implemented in partnership with industry to enhance management capabilities for 
 farm business resilience and preparedness for periods of hardship.

Goal: We look after our land, rivers and wetlands.

Target 70: Sustainable land management.

• Hosted a meeting of the signatory nations to the Montreal Process for the sustainable management 
 of temperate and boreal forests.
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Performance Summary: Agribusiness and Regions

Future Directions 2014-15

• Establish a framework for commercial and government cooperation for the primary industries 
 sector through implementing the South Australia China Agribusiness Initiative agenda, including 
 capitalising on the MOU signed with key government counterparts in Shandong and Fujian 
 provinces.

• Implement the Agribusiness Accelerator Program to increase the capability of agribusiness  
 to attract equity investment through the AgriPACE and Agribusiness Consultants Program.

• Support regional economic development throughout South Australia through regional  
 funding programs including the enhanced Regional Development Fund and the new Jobs  
 Accelerator Fund and the Regional Development Australia Fund.

• Implement the Charter for Stronger Regional Policy through the establishment of Regions SA 
 and building capabilities in supporting increased economic activity in the regions, as well as 
 maximising the collective impact of government activity in the regions.

• Facilitate engagement with regional communities on key issues and opportunities to maximise 
 regional South Australia’s competitive advantage.

• Establish regional and industry clusters to improve long-term growth and competitiveness  
 of food and wine industries.

• In conjunction with Limestone Coast local government bodies, Regional Development  
 Australia and the Department of State Development, support the region to progress its  
 economic diversification program.

• Use the new platforms of engagement developed with Shandong Government to foster trade 
 and investment.

• Deliver the Food Innovation Program (formerly the Food Hub) to support increased  
 commercialisation of research and development and uptake of technical expertise in the food 
 manufacturing sector.

• Provide South Australia’s contribution to intergovernmental policy affecting primary industries 
 and regional development.

• Work with the Department of Planning, Transport and Infrastructure to update the South 
 Australian Planning Policy Library and deliver responsive and contemporary land use planning 
 for primary industries.

• Monitor compliance with the ForestrySA forward sale government contract requirements.

• Progress the South East Forestry Partnership program that supports capital investment in the  
 forestry sector in the south-east of South Australia.
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Performance Summary: Agribusiness and Regions

Future Directions 2014-15

• Facilitate industry readiness for the commencement of the Illegal Logging Regulations in  
 November 2014.

• Negotiate an efficient, least cost, regulatory and compliance regime for forest water  
 licensing to maintain industry competitiveness and regional economic and employment  
 outcomes.
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Performance Summary: Biosecurity SA

Biosecurity SA develops and implements policies, legislation, regulatory frameworks, surveillance,  
preparedness and response programs. These protect the economy, environment, communities and 
human health from the negative impacts associated with the entry, establishment or spread of pests, 
diseases and contaminants.  Biosecurity SA also has a food safety role in primary industry production.

Biosecurity is a shared responsibility across all levels of government, industry and the community.  
Biosecurity SA works with risk creators and industry beneficiaries to contribute to an effective 
biosecurity system. This work includes publicising the fact that prevention, early detection and rapid 
intervention lead to better and more cost-effective outcomes.

The beneficiaries of this investment are broad, with many industries and communities dependent on 
effective systems in the areas of animal health, aquatic animal health, marine pests, vertebrate pests, 
weeds, plant health, chemical residues and food-borne pathogens from primary industries. 

Biosecurity SA’s programs and objectives align with the South Australian Government strategic  
priority, Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment, by underpinning product integrity, food 
safety and market access for South Australia’s primary products.

Key objectives for Biosecurity SA are to:

• Protect and enhance the integrity and reputation of SA’s primary products, including food.

• Partner with government organisations, industries and communities to build a shared vision and 
 responsibility for biosecurity.

• Build biosecurity capabilities and capacity across government and industries.

• Prevent and be prepared to respond to and/or manage animal and plant pest and diseases,  
 contaminant and food safety risks and emergencies.

• Build and/or maintain surveillance programs for high-priority threats.

• Positively influence State and national policies, commitments and agendas.

• Develop our people, support services and business practices.

Major Outcomes Achieved

Our Prosperity

Goal: South Australia has a resilient, innovative economy.

Target 35: Economic growth.

• Negotiated with various jurisdictions over market access arrangements for horticultural  
 commodities which maintain South Australia’s world-class biosecurity status, protect the State’s 
 production areas and, where possible, reduce red tape.

• Established an online registration system to improve access and streamline the property  
 identification code registration process for clients.
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Performance Summary: Biosecurity SA

• Maintained the State’s favourable ovine Johne’s disease (OJD) status.

• Implemented regulations under the Agricultural and Veterinary Products (Control of Use) Act 2002 to 
 include requirements for training and record-keeping for users of phenoxy herbicides.

• Delivered an education program and audited 12 chemical users to improve Group I herbicide  
 application practices and reduce spray drift of these chemicals.

• Investigated 57 off-target chemical spray drift incidents and 10 chemical residue incidents, audited 
 11 fox bait users and engaged with more than 300 individuals and organisations to gain support for 
 the adoption of best practice spraying methods.

• Carried out 454 tests to rule out exotic animal diseases in abalone, birds, pigs, horses, cattle and 
 other ruminants.

• Delivered 24 workshops in emergency management to create a pool of 600 trained staff from PIRSA 
 and other agencies to ensure PIRSA can mobilise an adequate first response team in the event of a 
 major biosecurity disease outbreak.

Target 37: Total exports.

• Eradicated two incursions of Queensland fruit fly from the Riverland and four incursions of  
 Mediterranean fruit fly from metropolitan Adelaide.

• Managed regular inspection of more than 3500 fruit fly traps across metropolitan Adelaide, the  
 Riverland production area, Port Augusta and Ceduna.  

• Negotiated verification of US market access requirements for Riverland citrus outside the Loxton 
 and Pyap quarantine areas.

• No lost markets for Riverland citrus production due to fruit fly.

• Undertook more than 2500 on-farm animal disease investigations, including 29 exotic disease  
 rule-outs, all of which were essential to maintaining access to international markets.

• Established and improved collaborative biosecurity surveillance programs with industry and the 
 community for the early detection of priority pest and disease threats. 

• Led South Australia’s implementation of the seven schedules of the Intergovernmental Agreement  
 on Biosecurity.

• Deployed trained emergency management staff to New South Wales and the Northern Territory  
 to assist with responses to Avian Influenza and Banana Freckle.

Goal: We develop and maintain a sustainable mix of industries across the State.

Target 40: Food industry.

• Analysed 282 shellfish samples, 701 water samples, 414 phytoplankton samples and 98 biotoxin  
 shellfish samples from 28 approved harvest areas to enable 121 oyster and mussel growers, cockle, 
 pipi and scallop harvesters to maintain access to the domestic and international market. 



23

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 3 - 1 4

• Accredited more than 920 meat processors, 119 shellfish producers, four seed sprouters, 87 egg 
 producers and 103 poultry producers, and approved 21 citrus packer food safety programs while 
 also undertaking more than 1750 audits of producer and processor businesses. Undertook 920 
 audits of fruit, vegetable and plant importers and exporters and issued more than 1730 plant 
 health certificates for produce being exported interstate.

• There was no food-borne illness attributed to regulated food businesses.

• Managed the eradication of two exotic plant pest incursions of potato spindle tuber viroid to 
 reduce the risk of spread to valuable potato and tomato industries.

Our Environment

Goal: We look after our land, rivers and wetlands.

Target 70: Sustainable land management.

• Successfully managed animal welfare issues during the 2014 bushfires.

• Established the SA Wild Dog Advisory Group to oversee implementation of the National Wild 
 Dog Action Plan and corresponding SA Wild Dog Strategic Plan.

• Investigated measures to improve the effectiveness of rabbit biological control in partnership with 
 the Invasive Animals Cooperative Research Centre and the University of Adelaide.

• Finalised the SA delivery of the Australian Feral Camel Management Project, which facilitated 
 removal of approximately 22 000 feral camels over four years, achieving very low densities in the 
 Simpson Desert and Great Victoria Desert regions and a significant reduction in feral camel  
 density on Anangu Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara land.

• Led the delivery of a dingo aerial baiting program involving 97 pastoral landholders, delivering  
 50 000 baits over a 10 000 km flight path in the SA Arid Lands Natural Resources region south  
 of the Dog Fence.

• Led consultation, in partnership with the Department of Environment, Water and Natural  
 Resources and Natural Resource Management boards, on 98 existing and new declared plant  
 policies under the Natural Resources Management Act 2004.

• Commenced implementation of the SA Buffel Grass Strategic Plan.

Goal: We care for our oceans, coasts and marine environments.

Target 71: Marine biodiversity.

• Assisted Coffin Bay oyster growers with ongoing control of wild Pacific oysters to minimise future 
 biosecurity risks for industry, coastal environments and infrastructure.

Performance Summary: Biosecurity SA
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Performance Summary: Biosecurity SA

Future Directions 2014-15

• Commence building a sterile insect technology facility at Port Augusta.

• Maintain horticulture export market access for the Riverland production area by retaining  
 the region’s fruit fly, pest-free area status.

• Undertake a World Organisation for Animal Health (OIE)-based assessment of animal health 
 services.

• Implement the new MAX/Yes! emergency management/surveillance software across animal 
 and plant health areas.

• Implement the National Wild Dog Action Plan.

• Undertake an enhanced surveillance, monitoring and response program to maintain our  
 fruit fly free status.

• Undertake audits of red meat and poultry meat processors and egg, poultry meat, shellfish 
 and sprout producers.

• Enhance South Australia’s grains industry preparedness for an exotic grain pest incursion.  
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Performance Summary: Fisheries and Aquaculture

South Australia is home to Australia’s most diverse range of fisheries and aquaculture sectors, with a 
world-class reputation for producing quality seafood and environmental sustainability.

Our seafood industry has established itself as a significant contributor to South Australia’s primary 
industries, with species such as rock lobster on the Limestone Coast and southern bluefin tuna on 
Eyre Peninsula delivering significant economic returns and employment opportunities for regional 
communities.

With growth in seafood demand projected both globally and domestically, government management 
and sustainable development of our fisheries and aquaculture industries is critical to underpinning the 
State’s Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment strategic priority.

Widely viewed as a national leader in fisheries and aquaculture management, the PIRSA Fisheries and 
Aquaculture division is responsible for the ecologically sustainable development of the State’s aquatic 
resources. The division develops and implements policies, legislation and management frameworks and 
conducts education, monitoring and compliance programs to ensure the long-term sustainability of 
the aquatic environment and allow for the continued development and competitiveness of this vital 
primary industry.

PIRSA Fisheries and Aquaculture is responsible for:

• Ensuring the ecologically sustainable development and management of the State’s commercial,  
 recreational and Aboriginal traditional fisheries.

• Ensuring the ecologically sustainable development of the aquaculture industry.

• Establishing and maintaining equitable and efficient allocation of the State’s aquatic resources for  
 the benefit of the South Australian community.

• Delivering strategic policies and effective services to the South Australian seafood industry.

• Educating all fishers and aquaculture operators about their responsibilities to ensure the  
 sustainability of aquatic resources.

• Working with industry and representative bodies to determine and monitor the compliance  
 and ecosystem health risks associated with each fishery and aquaculture sector.

• Developing and delivering a fisheries and aquaculture compliance program that addresses risks  
 to the sustainability of aquatic resources.

• Developing and reviewing fisheries management plans and aquaculture zone policies to make  
 sure each sector is operating under the most effective and efficient management framework.

• Effectively administering the leasing and licensing of fisheries and aquaculture operations.
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Performance Summary: Fisheries and Aquaculture

Major Outcomes Achieved

Our Environment

Goal: We care for our oceans, coasts and marine environments.

Target 71: Marine biodiversity.

• Commenced a statewide recreational fishing survey to update catch and effort estimates for key 
 species and to inform sustainable recreational fisheries management.

• Developed a smartphone application to deliver the recreational fishing guide and other relevant 
 information for recreational fishers, such as spatial and temporal closures, electronically.

• Successfully conducted a voluntary commercial catch and effort reduction program for five fishing 
 sectors to ensure the ongoing sustainability of South Australia’s fisheries following the introduction 
 of marine parks. Further negotiations with the last sector, Central Zone Abalone, are continuing.

• Facilitated a forum with SA Aboriginal Sea Nations to develop a model for the introduction of a 
 South Australian Sea Ranger program to encourage indigenous support for fisheries management.

• Implemented new management plans for commercial marine scalefish and southern zone rock  
 lobster fisheries.

• Developed and implemented compliance programs for new fishery management arrangements in  
 the commercial abalone fisheries and recreational pipi and blue crab fisheries.

• Replaced the patrol vessel for Kingscote to service the Kangaroo Island region.

• Introduced revised management arrangements for snapper and garfish to ensure fishing activities  
 for these species is sustainable.

Our Prosperity

Goal: We develop and maintain a sustainable mix of industries across the State.

Target 39: Competitive business climate: Maintain Adelaide’s rating as the least costly place to set up 
and do business in Australia and continue to improve our position internationally.

• Assisted WildCatchSA to host the National Seafood Directions Conference at Port Lincoln,  
 attended by approximately 200 national seafood industry participants.

• Hosted the World Aquaculture Adelaide 2014 Conference in June 2014, attended by about 2000 
 delegates from around the world and showcasing South Australia’s world-leading aquaculture  
 industries.

• Developed real-time electronic catch data submission to PIRSA from participating commercial  
 fishers.

• Developed a commercial smartphone application to improve fishing reporting requirements.
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Performance Summary: Fisheries and Aquaculture

• Completed a 90-day project, Streamlining Regulation of South Australia’s Tuna Industry, to create  
 efficiencies in the licence assessment and approval process.

• Implemented exploratory and developmental permits which allow for the potential commercial use 
 of non-traditional aquatic resources and fishing practices.

Future Directions 2014-15

• Conduct the Statewide recreational fishing survey to update catch and participation estimates 
 for key species and inform sustainable recreational fisheries management.

• Produce an updated report on the status of all South Australian fish stocks, using the national 
 stock status reporting framework established in 2013.

• Review the Aquaculture Regulations to ensure they are aligned with best practice and the 
 newly amended Aquaculture Act 2001.

• Develop and implement new management plans for the commercial Lakes and Coorong,  
 the Gulf St Vincent prawn, Spencer Gulf prawn and sardine fisheries and the recreational  
 fisheries.

• Develop a policy framework to guide monitoring, assessment, management and reporting  
 of by-catch in South Australian fisheries.

• Develop a harvest strategy policy framework for South Australian fisheries based on the  
 recently finalised national guidelines for harvest strategy development.
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Performance Summary: Rural Solutions SA

Rural Solutions SA provides commercial services to private and public sector organisations in South 
Australia, nationally and internationally. It delivers agribusiness and environmental solutions to  
community, industry and government through partnerships, engagement and innovation.

Rural Solutions SA is a key delivery agent for programs and projects for PIRSA with a focus on  
commercial services, major programs and regional customer service centres.  It is a major conduit  
for the agency in regions for information dissemination and collection. Through the regional customer 
service centres located across the State, Rural Solutions SA provides an important interface with  
regional communities, providing a ‘one-stop shop’ for all rural business enquiries and transactions, making 
it easy for regional communities to access the information and services they require.  

Rural Solutions SA’s reputation has been built and maintained through innovation, outstanding client 
focus, strong people capabilities and the agility and flexibility to meet the needs and objectives of  
stakeholders and customers.

Major Outcomes Achieved

Our Prosperity

Goal: We develop and maintain a sustainable mix of industries across the State.

Target 40: Food industry.

• Initiated the New Horizons soil modification and improvement program to facilitate the potential of 
 significantly increasing South Australia’s agricultural production through the application of advances in  
 soil science and management.  

• Continued delivery of a range of innovative sustainable agriculture extension programs that provide 
 an ideal information conduit, access to experts and knowledge to enhance agricultural production 
 and sustainability, contributing directly to the profitability of the agriculture, food and wine industries 
 in South Australia.   

Our Community

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 33: Government planning decisions.

• In partnership with the Department of Manufacturing, Innovation, Trade, Resources and Energy,  
 prepared the business plan and budget bid to establish the Eyre Peninsula Land Use Support Program.  
 This innovative program supports landholders on the Eyre Peninsula to understand the possible  
 impacts of exploration and mining on their enterprises. The program is being delivered across the 
 region.
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Performance Summary: Rural Solutions SA

Our Environment

Goal: We look after our land, rivers and wetlands.

Target 69: Lose no species.

• Completed delivery of South Australia’s component of the National Feral Camel Management 
 Project under Caring for our Country. The project achieved a range of lasting, on-ground and  
 capacity-building outcomes to support future industry development activities. The project removed 
 more than 22 000 feral camels from South Australia’s rangelands, reducing the threat to biodiversity 
 and pastoral and remote community infrastructure. 

Target 70: Sustainable land management.

• Established the New Horizons soil modification program, which will provide long-term storage  
 of carbon and a significant reduction in soil erosion risk.  

• Delivered native vegetation clearance assessments for the Department for Environment, Water and 
 Natural Resources’ Riverine Recovery Program. The project aimed to restore wetland ecological and 
 hydrological function while achieving environmental water savings. These surveys set the baseline to 
 enable monitoring following infrastructure works.

Goal: Industry and agriculture are highly efficient and innovative in their use of water.

Target 75: Sustainable water use. 

• Reached agreement on $265 million of federal funds through the South Australian River Murray 
 Sustainability Program (SARMS) National Partnership Agreement, including two components: the 
 $240 million Irrigation Industry Improvement Program (3IP) and $25 million for regional economic 
 development. Work included:

  > Closed Round One of the 3IP and began the competitive assessment process.

  > Commenced planning for the $7.5 million redevelopment of the Loxton Research Centre  
   to enable the facility to operate as the Riverland and Mallee primary producers’ business and 
   research centre and support regional development. 

  > Commenced Round One of the $5 million Industry-led Research Sub-program (IRSP) – a  
   competitive process to commission research to benefit the region. 

  >  Commenced the $12.5 million Regional Development and Innovation Fund to support regional 
   development, employment opportunities and economic diversification in the region.

Goal: We adapt to the long-term physical changes that climate change presents.

Target 62: Climate change adaptation.

• Delivered the Future Farm Landscapes project through engagement and extension activities in South 
 Australia’s regions. These activities are designed to help address climate change and the emerging 
 carbon market, and to identify the value of biodiversity and protect land to be preserved for  
 livestock and crop production.
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Performance Summary: Rural Solutions SA

Future Directions 2014-15

• Deliver outstanding agribusiness and environmental solutions to community, industry and 
 government through partnerships, engagement and innovation.

• Continue implementation of the $265 million SARMS program to support the required 
 adjustment of the irrigation industry along the River Murray in response to the  
 Murray-Darling Basin Plan.

• Implement the Regional Economic Development Program to support economic  
 diversification, research and the redevelopment of the Loxton Research Centre in the  
 River Murray region.

• Complete implementation of the new regional service delivery model for PIRSA and  
 provide the critical interface between PIRSA and regional communities. 

• Expand the New Horizons soil modification/improvement program to significantly increase 
 agricultural production through new advances in soil science and management.

• Establish the Camel Industry Development for South Australia project.

• Support Aboriginal communities through the development of partnerships and continuous 
 engagement to create opportunities for them to recognise their cultural beliefs and history 
 and increase their participation in regional economic development opportunities.

• Build the profile and reputation of Seed Services Australia as the premium certification  
 and testing provider for the Australian pasture seed industry. 
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Performance Summary: SARDI

Scientific research and sustainable practice underpin South Australia’s Premium Food and Wine from our 
Clean Environment strategic priority.

The South Australian Research and Development Institute (SARDI) celebrated 21 years of delivering 
practical, industry-focused solutions to primary producers, commercial partners, aquatic and natural  
resources managers and other bioscience partners. The research strives for positive ecological outcomes 
to conserve our marine, fresh water, soil and plant resources.

These applied research and development solutions deliver new products and validate South Australia’s 
“clean and green” credentials, underpin export market position and growth, as well as contribute to 
global food security targets required to feed up to three billion more people by 2050. They also position 
South Australia’s primary producers to remain internationally competitive in a rapidly changing global 
economy.

From the sea and land to the consumer’s table, SARDI scientists are creating opportunities for farmers, 
fishers, food producers and other agribusinesses to adapt to biosecurity, market access, climate variability 
and other environment challenges.

SARDI’s scientific outcomes contribute to South Australia’s Strategic Plan by attracting critical  
investment and research and development funding, meeting specific industry priorities to enhance  
economic performance, and by pursuing innovation in environmental issues. These contributions are vital 
to ensuring South Australia continues to produce premium food and wine from a clean environment.

Across a range of science programs, SARDI addresses the following priorities for primary industries:

• expert advice on marine and fresh-water resource management, including wild fisheries and  
 aquaculture in our pristine waters 

• new crop varieties and production technologies

• biosecurity

• food safety and innovation

• sustainable use of resources

• adaptation to climate variability in regional South Australia

• enabling technologies

• animal health and welfare.

For every dollar spent on agricultural research, the flow-on benefit to rural industries has been assessed 
at between 20 per cent and 80 per cent. SARDI attracts more than $50 million a year, or 83 per cent of 
its budget, from external sources, commercial receipts and royalties. Its 330 highly skilled staff work at 
modern research facilities at the Waite and Roseworthy campuses, the SA Aquatic Sciences Centre and  
a range of regional research centres throughout South Australia. Collaboration with a range of other  
tertiary and research organisations in Australia and overseas supports its world-class research and  
development.

These collaborations strengthen South Australia’s position as an international centre of excellence for 
food and wine in education, research, development and technology transfer to farmers and industry – and 
underpin the State’s clean, safe, ethical and secure production systems.
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Performance Summary: SARDI

Major Outcomes Achieved

Our Prosperity

Goal: South Australia has a resilient, innovative economy.

Target 35: Economic growth.

• Supported the development and commercialisation of new cereal, pulse and pasture varieties which build 
 capacity in SA’s $4.3 billion grains and $3.6 billion livestock sectors, as well as key innovations and  
 technical support for the State’s growing $460 million seafood industry.

• Delivered a range of robust scientific solutions to primary industries, including award-winning  
 DNA-based tests and novel surveillance options capable of saving broadacre cropping millions of dollars 
 in lost production. 

• In collaboration with BP Australia and CSIRO, the Marine Innovation Southern Australia (MISA) partners  
 SARDI, Flinders University and the University of Adelaide commenced the $20 million Great Australian 
 Bight Research Program – a whole-of-ecosystem study into the region’s natural, economic and social  
 assets. It coincided with more than $1 billion in offshore oil and gas exploration planned for southern 
 Australia.

Target 37: Total exports.

• Developed farming and processing systems and improved crop varieties to meet food safety, quality  
 and taste requirements in key export markets, including China, India, Europe and the United States of 
 America. 

• Managed common and emerging pest and disease issues and developed improved management options; 
 for example, for snails and slugs in broadacre cropping and trunk diseases in viticulture. 

Goal: We develop and maintain a sustainable mix of industries.

Target 40: Food industry.

• Supported South Australian food industries with innovative solutions to product development, product 
 integrity, market access, packaging, labelling and processing.

• Produced one million native oyster spat to help diversify and expand South Australia’s $243 million  
 aquaculture sector.   

Our Environment

Goal: We adapt to the long-term physical changes that climate change presents.

Target 62: Climate change adaptation.

• Developed strategies to reduce risk from climate variability in broadacre crops and in vineyards. Practical 
 management options are developed to help industries avoid crop damage from episodic climate events 
 and issues related to variable water quantity and quality. 
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Performance Summary: SARDI

Goal: We look after our land, rivers and wetlands.

Target 70: Sustainable land management.

• Developed sustainable and profitable cropping practices in low-rainfall areas, including the Murray Mallee 
 and Upper Eyre Peninsula.

• Assessed the impacts of drought and environmental water flows on native plants and animals in the 
 lower River Murray and recommended strategies for future management of these natural resources. 

Goal: We care for our oceans, coasts and marine environments.

Target 71: Marine biodiversity.

• Continued to monitor and assess South Australia’s wild fisheries and environments, determining  
 the annual health and limits of exploitation which sustain the $217 million commercial fishing and related 
 industries.   

• Through a range of initiatives, investigated changes in aggregations of Giant Australian Cuttlefish,  
 particularly during their annual spawning season in the Upper Spencer Gulf.  

• Undertook a statewide survey of Australian Sea Lion and Fur Seal colonies in SA.  

Goal: Industry and agriculture are highly efficient and innovative in their use of water.

Target 75: Sustainable water use.

• Led the Goyder Institute project, “Water Allocation Planning for the Adelaide Mount Lofty Ranges”,  
 and other hydrology and catchment ecology research projects. These projects will develop critical  
 knowledge to inform policy development and help secure the long-term future of fresh water resources 
 in South Australia. 

• Extended research into improving the quality of recycled wastewater used in viticulture and almond 
 production at McLaren Vale and Northern Adelaide Plains.

Our Health

Goal: We make healthy choices in how we live.

Target 78: Healthy South Australians.

• The National Oat Breeding Program, led by SARDI, released a new oat variety in Western Australia with 
 high beta-glucan levels for increased health benefits such as cholesterol control. 

• Led the national SafeFish program, providing advice on food safety and hygiene issues for market access 
 for Australian seafood. 

Our Education

Goal: We have a zest for lifelong learning.

Target 93: Tertiary education and training.

• Supervised or co-supervised more than 70 postgraduate students, with overseas university  
 collaborations raising SARDI’s research capability. 
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Performance Summary: SARDI

Our Ideas

Goal: Our research and development builds on our competitive strengths and addresses weaknesses.

Target 95: Industry collaboration, research and development commercialisation.

• Collaborated on improved animal welfare, reproduction and housing and feed and nutrition standards 
 for the pork, chicken meat and egg industries. 

• The Australian Pastures Genebank at SARDI’s Plant Research Centre sent the first consignment of  
 native pasture seed, including lucerne and medics bred by SARDI, to the Global Genebank in Norway. 

• Launched a sophisticated carrying capacity model and interactive graphical tool to help expand valuable 
 finfish aquaculture, including southern bluefin tuna and yellowtail kingfish, in Spencer Gulf, using  
 oceanography data from the Southern Australian Integrated Marine Observing System.  

Goal: We are innovative in designs and technologies and we use our intellectual property to advance.

Target 96: Public research expenditure.

Target 97: University research income.

Target 98: Business research expenditure.

• Attracted more than $50 million in external research grants and commercial receipts. Funds were 
 sourced through industry and producer groups, Australian Government initiatives and commercial  
 receipts for SARDI services. 

Future Directions 2014-15

• Coordinate South Australia’s participation and collaboration commitments to the National 
 Primary Industries Research and Development and Extension Framework, and build SA’s 
 expertise in grains, seafood, viticulture and pigs and poultry, food and nutrition, water use  
 in agriculture and climate change research and development to deliver a return on State  
 investment of 1:3.

• Establish formal partnership agreements with the University of Adelaide, University of  
 South Australia and Flinders University to underpin and coordinate primary industries science 
 leadership and capability in South Australia.  

• Lead the $3.4 million Lower River Murray Long-term Intervention Monitoring collaborative 
 science project over the next five years, to monitor and evaluate ecological outcomes from 
 the delivery of environmental water to the lower River Murray with funding from the 
 Commonwealth Environmental Water Office. 

• Lead the $1.1 million Functional Food Focus Program, which aims to develop and promote 
 food with health benefits beyond nutrition, as part of the PIRSA Agribusiness Accelerator 
 Program. 
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Performance Summary: SARDI

Future Directions 2014-15

• Lead six projects in the $20 million Great Australian Bight Research Program in oceanography,  
 pelagic ecosystems, benthic biodiversity, iconic species and the development of a model of the 
 structure and dynamics of the bight’s ecosystem. 

• Develop a male-only, sterile strain of Queensland fruit fly as part of the national Sterile Insect 
 Technology (SITplus) consortium.

• Develop a robust DNA-based testing system to conduct surveys of Australian ports for  
 identification and surveillance of exotic marine pests.  

• Fast-track development of a DNA-based soil test for detection and surveillance of phylloxera, 
 a damaging grapevine insect, to protect South Australia’s phylloxera-free status. 

• Conduct a series of projects to model heat stress and water deficit in wine grapes and  
 provide management tools for viticulturists aimed at building resilience to variable climate 
 conditions. 

• Establish a node of the Australian Animal Welfare Science Centre in South Australia to help 
 develop livestock management systems which meet consumer and producer expectations  
 of sustainable livestock production. 

• Develop a pigs and poultry research and development business plan which supports the 
 redevelopment of associated research infrastructure at the Roseworthy and Turretfield  
 Research Centres. 

• Build on significant advances in new crop varieties which focus on disease resistance and  
 tolerance to hotter, dryer conditions, including a drought-tolerant oat variety. 

• Produce an annual Sowing Guide and Harvest Guide to drive productivity of South  
 Australia’s grains industry.

• Secure and grow critical fundamental and applied research and development capability that 
 supports the development of premium food and wine from our clean water, air and soil.

• Formally launch the Australian Pasture Genebank at SARDI’s Plant Research Centre at the   
 Waite Campus. 

• Expand alliances at Roseworthy Campus to promote research and development, training  
 and education in the sustainable production of livestock – including animal health and  
 welfare – and aquatic biosecurity.

• In collaboration with aquaculture industries, develop improved feeding regimes for yellowtail 
 kingfish and abalone, leading to significant savings for producers and better environmental   
 outcomes.

• Develop a wellbeing index for application on farm to improve the welfare of sheep.
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Performance Summary: Strategy and Engagement

Strategy and Engagement drives the strategic direction of the agency and its profile within the South 
Australian community. It leads and implements an action plan for the development of the Premium Food 
and Wine from our Clean Environment strategic priority.

In 2013–14 the directorate consisted of three groups: Premium Food and Wine from our Clean  
Environment Project Team, Organisational Strategy and Development and Strategic Communications 
and Engagement.

The Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment project team is responsible for leading the 
development and implementation of the strategic priority. The team takes a strategic view of the  
priority in order to consider possible actions and delivery mechanisms from different levels including 
government, industry and the community.

The Organisational Strategy and Development unit leads and delivers the Change@SA program and  
the High Performance Framework, which aims to achieve greater levels of community and industry  
satisfaction and engagement and optimal organisational performance. The agency’s learning and  
organisational development functions are essential to the success of the directorate and a fundamental 
element in the formation of the change programs. Key work included 90-day projects to reduce  
government red tape.

PIRSA’s Strategic Communications and Engagement unit provides timely and proactive communications 
programs to promote PIRSA’s achievements, business imperatives, programs, emergency response and 
community awareness, both externally and internally. It drives engagement with the community on 
PIRSA’s role in South Australia’s Strategic Plan targets and the strategic objective of Premium Food and 
Wine from our Clean Environment.

Major Outcomes Achieved

Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Developed and released the Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment Action Plan  
 following extensive and ongoing industry and community consultation.

• Launched a new Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment website with a social media 
 presence that positioned, profiled and promoted South Australia’s food and wine industries.

• Implemented a marketing program for South Australian food and wine which included:

  > Delivering the Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment Ambassadors Program 
   with a group of highly respected South Australian and international ambassadors to champion 
   our premium produce throughout Australia and in other key markets. 



37

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 3 - 1 4

Performance Summary: Strategy and Engagement

  > Supporting events such as the Cellar Door Wine Festival, showcasing more than 150 food and 
   wine producers; Savour Australian Wine Forum 2013, providing an opportunity to showcase 
   the South Australian wine industry to the world; the Australian Seafood Industry national  
   conference Seafood Directions 2013; Cheesefest 2013, Australia’s largest and highest-profile 
   artisan cheese making festival; the Brand SA Regional Awards, in which a Premium Food and 
   Wine from our Clean Environment category was introduced; and preparing for LambEX 2014, 
   Australia’s largest sheep and lamb conference, held in July 2014. 

  > Hosting the Premium Food and Wine dinner as part of the G’Day USA event to promote 
   South Australian food and wine to audiences in the USA. 

  > Support to develop a State farmers’ market authentication scheme.

  > Developing and implementing the Savvy Chefs program.  

Organisational Strategy and Development

Goal: We have a zest for lifelong learning.

Target 93: Tertiary education and training.

• Delivered training in business improvement processes which led to a reduction in red tape within 
 PIRSA, benefiting customers and industry. 

• Addressed divisional development priorities based on identification of critical capabilities. 

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Implemented the Change@PIRSA program to enable organisational reform and embed a culture of 
 learning and improvement. This included delivery of seven internal and three external 90-day projects 
 to achieve greater efficiencies.

• Developed the Women Influencing Agribusiness and Regions Strategy to raise the profile of the  
 sector and promote the diversity of roles for women.

• Implemented an engagement framework for all PIRSA staff to foster enhanced two-way  
 communication amongst leaders, managers and staff.

Strategic Communications and Engagement

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Completed a review of PIRSA’s online presence to ensure a customer-focused marketing platform. 
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• Leveraged communication opportunities through activities to promote South Australia’s Strategic Plan  
 targets, the Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment strategic priority and PIRSA’s  
 Corporate Plan through:

  > Hosting regional Premium Food and Wine from our Clean Environment community discussions  
   to engage with the community at some of the State’s premier food and wine festivals. 

  > Hosting industry forums to engage with the food and wine industries on the Premium Food 
   and Wine from our Clean Environment Action Plan. 

  > Distributing a quarterly newsletter for the Premium Food and Wine from our Clean  
   Environment strategic priority with stories about the State’s food and wine sectors. 

  > Sponsoring the inaugural Food and Wine Trail at the 2013 Royal Adelaide Show to support 
   local farmers, the food processing sector and local food and wine businesses and connect the 
   public to the State’s premium food and wine.  

  > Supporting Tasting Australia 2014 through the Words to Go bloggers’ forum and an interactive 
   workshop with innovative farmer Joel Salatin.

  > Working with Biosecurity SA to deliver a comprehensive information campaign on fruit fly 
   after outbreaks in the Riverland and at Sellicks Beach.

Future Directions 2014-15

• Deliver the Change@PIRSA program, including 90-day projects which reduce red tape and   
 explore commercial opportunities for industry. 

• Implement the Women Influencing Agribusiness and Regions Strategy.

• Develop an Industry Partnership Framework to facilitate design and delivery of development   
 activities between government and industry. 

• Deliver a voluntary premium South Australian food and wine standard. 

• Establish a regional brand policy and program to promote the history, character and produce   
 of our regions. 

• As part of the Agribusiness Accelerator Program develop a marketing strategy that will grow 
 South Australia’s local, national and international reputation as a producer of premium food 
 and wine from our clean environment. 

• Build a new PIRSA website based on the 2013 review of online services.

• Deliver a framework for engagement with South Australia’s regions. 
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The Corporate Services division provides governance and business support services to PIRSA. This 
enables PIRSA to deliver on its commitment to the strategic priority of Premium Food and Wine 
from our Clean Environment and South Australia’s Strategic Plan.

Services include:

• people governance and assets

• financial and prudential management 

• information and communication technology (ICT)

• risk management and integrity.

The division also provided services to external clients – human resources and ICT services to  
Defence SA, ICT services to the Department of Manufacturing, Innovation, Trade, Resources and  
Energy and the Motor Sport Board, including for key events such as Clipsal 500, and Electronic  
Document and Records Management System support services to the Local Government Policy Unit 
and the Urban Renewal Authority.

Our corporate governance commitments ensure:

• The health, safety and wellbeing of our workforce, volunteers and others in our workplace through 
 commitment to continuous improvement of the PIRsafe system and the creation and upholding of 
 a positive culture towards safety and wellbeing.

• Our financial management system enables divisions to deliver on commitments and strategic 
 priorities and ensures effective monitoring and reporting against budgets and assists with meeting 
 governance requirements.

• Our risk management framework identifies and assesses all material risks and ensures that key risk 
 controls are regularly reviewed and audited for effectiveness and relevance.

• People initiatives are focused on leading, managing and developing staff to achieve our objectives  
 in an environment where people can learn, develop, excel and achieve.

• A client-oriented organisational culture where client customer service is an integral part of PIRSA’s 
 activities and management philosophy.

• A commitment to advancing reconciliation and creating respectful long-term relationships and  
 opportunities for Aboriginal people through the PIRSA Reconciliation Action Plan.

• Opportunities for women in leadership roles in PIRSA and equal representation on all boards and 
 committees associated with PIRSA.

• Grants, loans and regional financial support programs are administered in line with program  
 governance requirements.
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Major Outcomes Achieved

Information and Communication Technology (ICT)

Our Community

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Continued development of PIRSA online services, including functions to support online lodgement 
 and recording of aquaculture production returns and Environmental Monitoring Program reports.

• Improved disaster recovery capability by establishing a peer site at the Glenside hosting facility.

• Provided mapping support and geostatistics in response to the January 2014 Bangor bushfires in 
 the southern Flinders Ranges.

• Delineated quarantine areas and provided mapping support for fruit fly outbreaks.

• Conducted field mapping work for the South East Land Use Mapping Project.

Finance and Prudential Management

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Assisted in the delivery of regional financial support programs and supported agency operations  
 through the provision of prudential management advice, due diligence reports and financial and 
 administrative support.

• Assisted with the implementation of budget measures approved through previous State Budgets, 
 including the Targeted Voluntary Separation Package (TVSP) scheme.

• Continued the implementation of a consistent cost recovery framework across PIRSA.

• Supported the implementation of Machinery of Government functional changes, including working 
 towards the creation of Regions SA, a new division of PIRSA in 2014–15.

People, Governance & Assets

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Implemented the PIRSA First Program, which has mobilised and/or transitioned excess staff.

• Developed and implemented PIRSA’s Security Policy in accordance with the Protective Security 
 Management Framework.
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• Established a formal PIRSA regional accommodation strategy and associated action plan and  
 monitoring process.

• Project-managed the construction of new shed and laboratory facilities on PIRSA land at  
 Murray Bridge to enable improved operational and customer service delivery.

• Established an Asbestos Management Plan.

• Introduced further efficiencies by implementing changes to the Ministerial correspondence  
 workflow processes through automation of a number of manual tasks.

• Implemented the TimeWise time and attendance recording system across all divisions of PIRSA.

• Continued management of PIRSA’s vehicle fleet, resulting in a decrease in PIRSA’s Fringe Benefits 
 Tax (FBT) assessment. For 2013–14 PIRSA’s FBT liability for vehicles fell by 24 per cent compared  
 to the previous year.  

Risk & Integrity

Goal: Governments demonstrate strong leadership working with and for the community.

Target 32: Customer and client satisfaction with government services.

• Established a comprehensive PIRSA fraud and corruption framework that included the Fraud  
 Control Plan with the PIRSA Fraud and the Corruption Prevention Policy and Whistleblowers 
 Policy.

Future Directions 2014-15

Information and Communication Technology

• Redevelopment of a more streamlined PIRSA website aligned with the agency’s strategic  
 directions.

• Creation of additional workflows in the myPIRSA identity management software enabling 
 PIRSA business groups to more efficiently manage customer accounts.

• Implementation of the Microsoft Business Intelligence software suite to support replacement 
 of the PIRSA financial reporting system.

• Remix of the agency’s GIS software pool to further leverage the advantages of the  
 whole-of-government enterprise licensing agreement with Esri Inc.

• Continue to support PIRSA divisions to review business processes through ICT project  
 management and business analysis services.

• Increase PIRSA’s open (spatial) data release at data.sa.gov.au.

• Commence development of the agribusiness portal.
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Future Directions 2014-15

Financial and Prudential Management

• Continue to drive efficiencies and implement budget measures approved through previous 
 State Budgets.

• Assist the delivery of regional financial support programs including the SA River Murray  
 Sustainability Program and Regional Development Fund.

• Continue to implement a consistent cost recovery corporate services model across PIRSA.

• Continue to progress the replacement of PIRSA’s financial reporting tool so our financial 
 management system enables divisions to deliver on commitments and strategic priorities,  
 ensures effective monitoring and reporting against budgets and assists with meeting  
 governance requirements.

• Continue to support PIRSA (and other State Government agency purchasers) with prudential 
 advice and program administration.

People, Governance and Assets

• Continue the implementation of PIRSA’s Protective Security Management Framework in 
 support of the Australian Government’s Protective Security Policy Framework, addressing the 
 minimum security requirements for government assets – providing a safe work environment 
 for staff and adding value to the agency’s relationship with its clients.

• Confirm procurement accreditation from the State Procurement Board to enable PIRSA’s   
 Chief Executive to procure goods and services for business requirements in accordance with 
 State Procurement Board policies and guidelines.

• Continue strategic management of PIRSA’s accommodation requirements to maximise savings 
 opportunities and delivery of core services to the public, including collaboration opportunities 
 with other government agencies.

• Maintain and strengthen the PIRSA First Program for the management of unassigned  
 employees.

• Implement a workflow process to streamline and manage the process of publishing documents 
 to PIRSA’s internet.

• Develop tools to ensure efficient and timely import of records received into PIRSA’s  
 Objective electronic document and records management system through machinery of  
 government and organisational change.

• Revise PIRSA’s Motor Vehicle Policy and Procedures and update the vehicle FBT management   
 process.
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Future Directions 2014-15

Risk & Integrity

• Develop and implement training programs to further embed a PIRSA Risk Management  
 Framework and the PIRSA Fraud Control Plan.
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Reporting against the Carers’ Recognition Act 2005
Although not a “reporting agency” as defined in the Act, PIRSA continues to offer a range of support 
services and tools to its employees who have caring responsibilities in line with PIRSA’s Carers Policy.  
During 2013-14 an average of 1.4 days was approved for caring responsibilities per employee,  
demonstrating a continual increase each year since 2010.

Disability Access and Inclusion Plans
PIRSA recognises the rights of people with disabilities and promotes recognition and acceptance within 
PIRSA of the principle that people with disabilities should have the same opportunities as other  
community members to access and participate in all facets of community life.  PIRSA has begun  
reviewing the latest action plan and will have its fourth Disability and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) completed 
by June 2015.

Whistleblower Protection Act 1993
In the last financial year, no disclosures were made under the Whistleblower’s Protection Act 1993.  PIRSA’s 
Whistleblowers Policy undergoes annual review for currency and accuracy.
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 Employee numbers, gender and status 

 Total number of employees

 Persons    939

 FTEs    842.31

 Gender   % persons   % FTEs 
 Male   56.76    59.43

 Female   43.24    40.57

 Number of persons during the 2013-14 financial year

 Separated from the agency     193

 Recruited to the agency     176

     

 

 Number of persons at 30 June 2014

 On leave without pay     21

  Number of employees by salary bracket 

 Salary Bracket   Male   Female  Total

 $0 - $54 799   

 $54 800 - $69 699   

 $69 700 - $89 199   

 $89 200 - $112 599   

 $112 600+    

 TOTAL    

 

94

122

179

109

29

533

84

128

137

52

5

406

178

250

316

161

34

939
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Status of employees in current position

 FTEs Ongoing       Short-term contract     Long-term contract     Other (casual) Total

 Male      

 Female      

 TOTAL    

     PERSONS Ongoing       Short-term contract     Long-term contract     Other (casual) Total

 Male      

 Female     

 TOTAL     

Executives by gender, classification and status   

Leave Management

Average days’ leave per full-time equivalent employee

 Leave type              2010-11  2011-12 2012-13     2013-14

 Sick leave     6.3  6.7  6.4       6.1

 Family carer’s leave        0.9  0.9  1.1       1.4

 Miscellaneous special leave       0.5  0.5  0.5       0.5

Classification

EXEC0F

SAES1

SAES2

TOTAL

Ongoing Term Tenured Term Untenured Other (Casual) Total

Male

0

0

0

0

Male

0

0

0

0

Male

1

14

5

20

Male

0

0

0

0

Female

0

0

0

0

Female

0

0

0

0

Female

0

2

1

3

Female

0

0

0

0

Male

1

14

5

20

%

4

61

22

87

Female

0

2

1

3

%

0

9

4

13

Total

1

16

6

23

290

179.31

469.31

294

205

499

38.48

41.98

80.46

42

50

92

154.89

102.95

257.84

160

112

272

16.19

17.51

33.7

37

38

75

499.56

341.75

841.31

533

406

938
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Workforce Diversity

Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander (ATSI) employees 

Number of employees by age bracket and gender 

Cultural and linguistic diversity 

Salary bracket

$0 - $54 799

$54 800 - $69 699

$69 700 - $89 199

$89 200 - $112 599

$112 600+

TOTAL

Age bracket

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65+

TOTAL

Age bracket

Number of employees 
born overseas

Number of employees who 
speak language(s) other 
than English at home

Male

66

37

Female

72

31

Total

138

68

% of agency

14.7

7.24

% SA community*

22.1

14.4

Aboriginal Employees

2

3

0

0

0

5

Male

1

13

23

49

73

59

70

89

94

43

19

533

Female

1

13

33

62

60

56

56

50

53

18

4

406

Total

2

26

56

111

133

115

126

139

147

61

23

939

% of total

0.21

2.77

5.96

11.82

14.16

12.25

13.42

14.8

15.65

6.5

2.45

100

% 2014 Workforce benchmark

5.5%

9.7%

11.2%

10.7%

9.6%

11.4%

11.1%

11.4%

9.1%

6.7%

3.6%

100.0

Total Employees

178

250

316

161

34

939

% Aboriginal Employees

1.12

1.2

0

0

0

0.53

%Target*

2

2

2

2

2

2

* Target from SASP.

* Source:  Australian Bureau of Statistics Australian Demographic Statistics, 6291.0.55.001 Labour Force Status (ST LM8) by  
  sex, age, state, marital status – employed – total from Feb78 Supertable, South Australia at November 2013.

* Benchmarks from ABS Publication Basic Community Profile (SA) Cat No 2001.0,2006 census.
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Total number of employees with disabilities  
(according to Commonwealth DDA definition) 

Types of disabilities (where specified)

Voluntary Flexible Working Arrangements by Gender

Male   Female  Total         % of agency

8    8   16          1.7

Arrangement

Purchased Leave

Flexitime

Compressed Weeks

Part-time

Job Share

Working from Home

Disability

Disability requiring workplace adaptation

Physical

Intellectual

Sensory

Psychological/Psychiatric

Not Specified

Male

2

386

11

64

1

14

Male

8

1

1

2

1

6

Female

2

310

10

153

6

9

Female

8

3

1

1

1

5

Total

16

4

2

3

2

11

Total

4

696

21

217

7

23

% of Agency

1.7

0.4

0.2

0.3

0.2

1.2

Note:  Employees may be undertaking more than one type of flexible working arrangement at the same time.  In this way, the 
total is unlikely to add to 100%.

Note:  Some employees have more than one type of disability.  Therefore, the total is unlikely to add to 100%.
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Performance Development 
Documented review of individual performance management 

Leadership and Management Development 
Training expenditure 

Accredited Training Packages 

Employees with …                 % of total workforce

A review within the past 12 months                          84

A review older than 12 months                          10 

No review                             6

Training and development Total cost      % of total salary  
           expenditure

Total training and development expenditure $2 350 491                   2.87

Total leadership and management $1 367 037                   1.67
development expenditure

Classification

ASO1
ASO2
ASO3
ASO4
ASO5
ASO6
ASO7
ASO8
MAS2
MAS3
OPS2
OPS3

No. of accredited 
training packages

4
3
3
0
0
0
6
0
0
1
4
4

Classification

OPS4
OPS5
PO1
PO2
PO3
PO4
PO5
RVE1
SAES1
SAES2
TGO3

TOTAL

No. of accredited 
training packages

9
1
20
13
10
5
3
2
1
0
3

92
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Equal Employment Opportunity Programs

Aboriginal Recruitment Programs 
PIRSA’s Reconciliation Action Plan 2013-2015 specifically commits the agency to valuing and  
retaining its Aboriginal employees through career planning, leadership and professional development  
opportunities.

We continue to identify and implement strategies aimed at increasing recruitment, retention and  
development of Aboriginal people.  During 2013-14 PIRSA offered an Aboriginal scholarship grant  
to a student attending Adelaide University and a Science Bursary to a Flinders University student.

Traineeships

PIRSA participated in the whole of government traineeship scheme which resulted in employing three 
trainees (two located within the SARDI division and one within the Corporate division).

Disability Employment Registers

PIRSA continues to partner with Disability Works Australia and maintains a relationship with  
organisations that assist with the employment of people with disabilities such as Commonwealth  
Rehabilitation Services (CRS).  During 2013-14 PIRSA assisted with two work hardening placements.   
During the course of the placements, suitable vacancies arose within PIRSA and both people were  
offered employment contracts.
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Work Health and Safety 
and Injury Management

PIRSA continues to demonstrate sustained improvement in its injury management performance, with low 
numbers of claims and a successful return to work program.

Worthy of note is the reduction in claim numbers from 33 in 2012-13 to 19 in 2013-14 and significant 
decrease in claims costs following high claim settlements in 2012-13.

The PIRSA Work, Health and Safety Strategic Priorities 2013-14 were operational during the year to 
further focus PIRSA’s work health and safety program. The plan highlights PIRSA’s collective key safety 
concerns expressed as priorities, outcomes and key performance indicators and recognises the need for 
continuous improvement.  A key element of this plan was the introduction of Site Safety Management Plans 
across all PIRSA worksites.

PIRSA’s Work Health and Safety Governance Committee has provided a platform by which senior  
management and employees can work in collaboration to effectively address health, safety and welfare and 
injury management matters arising in PIRSA.

PIRSA’s Work Health and Safety Training Program (Making Safe Choices) was reviewed in 2013-14 and will 
be replaced with a series of online work health and safety modules.

The Employee Assistance Program has continued to receive positive attendances. In addition to a  
confidential counselling service for employees, the program offers a manager assistance program.
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Table 1:  Work Health and Safety Prosecutions, Notices and  
Corrective Action taken 

Table 2:  Agency gross workers compensation expenditure* for  
2013-14 compared with 2012-13 

Number of notifiable incidents pursuant to WHS Act Part 3

Number of notices served pursuant to WHS Act Section 90, Section 191 and 
Section 195 (Provisional improvement, improvement and prohibition notices) 

Expenditure

Income Maintenance

Lump Sum Settlements Redemptions –  
Sect. 42

Lump Sum Settlements Permanent  
Disability – Sect. 43

Medical/Hospital Costs combined

Other

Total Claims Expenditure

0

0

% Change
+(-)

7

(96)

(24)

6

(41)

(55)

Variation
($m) + (-)

0.009

(0.384)

(0.013)

0.006

(0.029)

(0.411)

2012-13
($m)

0.124

0.400

0.054

0.095

0.071

0.744

2013-14
($m)

0.133

0.016

0.041

0.101

0.042

0.333

* before third party recoveries
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and Injury Management
Table 3:  Meeting Safety Performance Targets* 

1: Workplace Fatalities

2: New Workplace Injury Claims

3: New Workplace Injury Claims  
 Frequency Rate

4: Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate

5: New Psychological Injury Claims 
 Frequency Rate

6: Rehabilitation and Return to Work:

6a Early Assessment within  
 2 days

6b Early Intervention within  
 5 days

6c LTI have 10 business days  
 or less lost time

7: Claim Determination:

7a New claims not yet determined, 
 assessed for provisional liability 
 in 7 days

7b Claims determined in 10 business  
 days

7c Claims still to be determined after  
 3 months

8: Income Maintenance Payments for  
 Recent Injuries:

 2010/11 Injuries (at 24 months  
 development)

 2011-12 Injuries (at 12 months  
 development)

Number 
or %

0

28

14.73

6.31

1.04

75.00%

100.00%

71.43%

14.29%

82.14%

3.57%

Base  
2009-2010

Performance: 12 months  
to end of June 2014

Final Target

Actual

0

19

13.05

8.93

0

63.16%

100.00%

60.00%

100.00%

95.24%

0.00%

     
113926.37 

55682.42

Notional  
quarterly target**

0

22

11.78

5.05

0.84

80.00%

90.00%

60.00%

100.00%

75.00%

3.00%

 147011.22

 58801.87

Variation

0

-3

1.27

3.88

-0.84

-16.84%

10.00%

0.00%

0.00%

20.24%

-3.00%

-33084.85

-3119.45

Numbers or 
%
 
0

21

11.05

4.73

0.78

80%

90%

60%

100%

75%

3%

Below previous 
2 years average

Below previous 
2 years average

* Information available from the Self Insurance Management System (SIMS) (SIPS target report) 
** Based on cumulative reduction from base at a constant quarterly figure.
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PIRSA aims to ensure that its activities and operations are environmentally, socially and  
economically sustainable.  PIRSA also recognises the challenges of climate change and has  
developed a PIRSA Climate Change Management Framework with the following objectives:

• Science: to deal with uncertainty, identify climate change effects and implications,  
 encourage collaborative research, and inform decision-making policy and processes. 

• Adaptation: to support primary producers to plan for production - or withdrawal or  
 relocation - under changing and variable climatic conditions. 

• Mitigation: to improve the impact of primary-related industries on climate change, to  
 reduce reliance on fossil fuels and minimise waste. 

• Innovation: to realise new potential for wealth creation and a sustainable environment;  
 and to create new best practice technologies. 

• Communication: to improve understanding of the obligations, risks and opportunities as  
 well as influencing State, national and international approaches.

PIRSA’s role in relation to climate change is therefore to facilitate:

• Informed decision-making by government and private sectors.

• Effective responses to regional issues. 

• Adjustment, adaptation, mitigation and innovation processes. 

• Appropriate, effective and efficient policy response frameworks.

The agency continues to demonstrate its commitment to the environment through the development 
of the new PIRSA Environmental Policy.  The agency also participates in beneficial internal greening 
initiatives including:

• The recycling of media items including CDs/DVDs and their associated plastic cases.

• The recycling of mobile phones and accessories through MobileMuster.

• Recycling of toner cartridges through Planet Ark.

• Recycling of primary batteries - non-rechargeable, common alkaline batteries such as Duracell  
 and Energiser brands and - secondary batteries (rechargeable).
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Practising Sustainability

The agency continues to focus on reducing its vehicle fleet (5.3% reduction from last year),  
consequently making significant improvements in the reduction of its greenhouse emissions in  
this area.  The average greenhouse gas (CO2) emission for 2013 - 14 was 250.7 gm/Km, a 6.2% 
reduction based on 2009-10 levels.

Vehicles by category:

Vehicles by fuel type:

30 June  
2010

63

58

22

38

133

36

350

30 June  
2010

128

19

8

187

8

350

267.3

30 June  
2011

52

34

16

35

124

28

289

30 June  
2011

97

13

7

168

4

289

257.3

30 June  
2012

36

24

14

26

112

21

233

30 June  
2012

67

4

2

158

2

233

259.0

30 June  
2013

26

16

13

22

107

23

207

30 June  
2013

51

2

2

152

0

207

255.0

30 June  
2014

27

5

15

28

99

22

196

30 June  
2014

39

0

0

157

0

196

250.7

Four-cylinder passenger

Six-cylinder passenger

Prestige

SUV

Light commercial

Large 4WD

TOTAL

Unleaded

Combined

LPG

Diesel

Hybrid

TOTAL

Greenhouse Emissions - 
CO2 (gm/km) 
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a. Base year figures and portfolio charges have been adjusted for Machinery of Government changes.

b. Base year business measures are based on information of sites occupied in the base year and are measured by  
 square metres (m2) and full-time employees (FTEs).

c. Figures are based on data available as at 4 August 2013. Due to billing cycle for different sites and availability of  
 information, for some sites, the consumption has been estimated based on past use and actuals available at the time.

d. Greenhouse Gas emissions (GHG) have been calculated using the estimated South Australian conversion factors  
 specified in the National Greenhouse Accounts Factors July 13 – Dept of Climate Change and Energy.

e. The portfolio target (2014) meets the Government’s undertaking of a 25% reduction in energy use in Government  
 buildings by 2014.

f. Lower GHG emission due to the plant at Waite Institute having been repaired and operating normally compared to  
 2012-2013.

g. Based on number of employees as at 30 June 2014.

Significant Energy Management Achievements  
• Electricity usage has reduced to some extent due to the closure of some sites and the  
 consolidation of staff which continues to contribute to energy savings across PIRSA’s portfolio.

• Significant consolidation of CBD and regional tenancies.

Energy consumption in buildings

(leased/owned)

2000-01 (base year) a

2000-01 (base year) business measures c

2013-14b

2013-14 business measures c

Final Portfolio Target (2014)

Energy Use

(GJ)

67 261

59 GJ/FTE

0.96 GJ /SQM

48 107

51.23 GJ/FTE

0.79 GJ/SQM

50 446 e

GHG  
Emissions

8 158

7.16 GHG/FTE

0.12 GHG/FTE

6 613 f

7.04 GHG/FTE

0.11 GHG/SQM

Business  
Measure

1 140 g

72 066 SQM

939 g

60 981 SQM

Energy Efficiency Action Plan Report

Performance against Annual Energy Targets

The table below summarises PIRSA’s energy expenditure, consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions for 2013-14 against the base year or 2000-01 and portfolio targets.
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APPENDIX 1
PIRSA Ministerial Responsibilities

The principal legislation for which PIRSA had administrative responsibility in 2013-14, through the 
Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries, Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation, 
Minister for Forests, and the Minister for Regional Development, is listed below. In some instances 
these Acts are supported by Regulations, Notices and Indentures or Directions.

AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FISHERIES
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (South Australia) Act 1994
Agricultural and Veterinary Products (Control of Use) Act 2002
Aquaculture Act 2001
Biological Control Act 1986
Brands Act 1933
Fisheries Management Act 2007
Genetically Modified Crops Management Act 2004
Impounding Act 1920
Livestock Act 1997
Phylloxera and Grape Industry Act 1995
Plant Health Act 2009
Primary Industry Funding Schemes Act 1998
Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004
Primary Producers Emergency Assistance Act 1967
Rural Industry Adjustment and Development Act 1985
South Australian Meat Corporation Act 1936
South Australian Meat Corporation (Sale of Assets) Act 1996
Veterinary Practice Act 2003
Wine Grapes Industry Act 1991

FORESTS
Forest Property Act 2000
Local Government (Forestry Reserves) Act 1944
Forestry Act 1950
South Australian Forestry Corporation Act 2000

REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Nil

OTHER ACTS 
In addition, PIRSA has limited administrative functions under the following Acts that are committed to 
other Ministers.

Development Act 1993
Disability Discrimination Act 1982
Environment Protection Act 1936
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Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cwlth)
Equal Opportunity Act 1984
Fairwork Act 2009
Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005
Fisheries Act 1995 (Vic)
Fisheries Management Act 1994 (NSW)
Fisheries Management Act 1991 (Cwlth)
Fish Resources Management Act 1994 (WA)
Harbours and Navigation Act 1993
Historic Shipwrecks Act 1976 (Cwlth)
Historic Shipwrecks Act 1981
Marine Parks Act 2007
National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972
Native Vegetation Act 2003
Natural Resource Management Act 2004
Occupational Health and Welfare Act 1986
River Murrray Act 2003
Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 1986

LEGISLATIVE CHANGES

ACTS REPEALED
Wheat Marketing Act 1989
Citrus Industry Act 2005

ACTS WHOSE REPEAL WAS PASSED DURING 2013–14 BUT NOT  
PROCLAIMED BY 30 JUNE 2014
None

ACTS PASSED, PROCLAIMED OR AMENDED DURING 2013–14
None

ACTS PASSED DURING 2013–14 AND AWAITING ASSENT
Wheat Marketing (Expiry) Amendment Bill 2013

BILLS INTRODUCED INTO PARLIAMENT IN 2013–14 BUT NOT PASSED
None

EXPIRED
None
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ADMINISTERED ITEMS
PIRSA administers, but does not control, the following items on behalf of the  Minister for Agriculture, 
Food and Fisheries, Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation, Minister for Forests, 
and the Minister for Regional Development. These items are not recorded in the agency’s controlled 
operating statement or statement of financial position as the agency does not have any discretion to 
deploy the resources for achievement of its own objectives.

Adelaide Hills Wine Industry Fund
Apiary Industry Fund
Aquaculture Lease Rehabilitation Fund
Aquaculture Resource Management Fund
Barossa Wine industry Fund
Cattle Industry Fund
Citrus Growers Fund
Clare Valley Wine Industry Fund
Deer Industry Fund
Dog Fence Board
Egg Industry Deregulation Fund
Eyre Peninsula Grain Growers Rail Fund
Fisheries Research and Development Fund
Forestry SA Community Service Obligation
Grains Industry Fund
Grains Industry Research and Development Fund
Langhorne Creek Wine Industry Fund
McLaren Vale Wine Industry Fund
Olive Industry Fund
Pig Industry Fund
Riverland Wine Industry Fund
Rock Lobster Fishing Industry Fund
SA Grape Growers Industry Fund
Samcor Fund Administration
Seed Levies Fund
Sheep Industry Fund

AUTHORITIES

STATUTORY
Statutory authorities associated with primary industries and regional development and within the 
Ministers’ areas of responsibility are listed below. PIRSA provides relevant assistance to these. 
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Agriculture, Food and Fisheries
Aquaculture Advisory Committee
Aquaculture Tenure Allocation Board
Dairy Authority of South Australia
Fisheries Council of South Australia
Genetically Modified Crop Advisory Committee
Meat Food Safety Advisory Committee
Phylloxera and Grape Industry Board of SA Selection Committee
Phylloxera and Grape Industry Board of South Australia
Rock Lobster Fishery Management Advisory Committee
Rural Assistance Appeals Committee
South Australian Alpaca Advisory Group
South Australian Apiary Industry Advisory Group
South Australian Cattle Advisory Group
South Australian Deer Advisory Group
South Australian Goat Advisory Group
South Australian Horse Industry Advisory Group
South Australian Pig Industry Advisory Group
South Australian River Murray Sustainability Program Steering Committee
South Australian Sheep Advisory Group
South Australian Wine Industry Council
Veterinary Surgeons Board of South Australia

Regional Development
Andamooka Town Management Committee
Outback Communities Authority
Regional Communities Consultative Council
South Australian Local Government Grants Commission

Forests
South Australian Forest Industry Advisory Board

Sustainability, Environment and Conservation
Central Local Dog Fence Board
Dog Fence Board
Fowlers Bay Dog Fence Board
Frome Local Dog Fence Board
Marree Local Dog Fence Board
Penong Local Dog Fence Board
Pureba Local Dog Fence Board

OTHER AUTHORITIES
There are many non-statutory authorities on which PIRSA is represented. Significant bodies are 
discussed in the ‘Performance review’ section (for example, the Agribusiness Council).
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APPENDIX 2
Consultancies

PIRSA did not engage any consultancies in 2013-14.

Note: PIRSA complies with the requirements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet Circular PC027 – 
Disclosure of Government Contracts which requires eligible contracts and consultancies as defined in  
this circular to be published on the South Australian Government’s Tenders and Contracts website: 
www.tenders.sa.gov.au.
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APPENDIX 3
Overseas Travel

Overseas travel by PIRSA employees for the period 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 is summarised  
below.  In 2013–14, 61 overseas visits were made by PIRSA employees, for a total agency cost  
of $269 636.

1

1

1

1

2

1   PIRSA’s financial support for overseas visits varied from full payment (salary plus on-costs, fares, necessary living expenses, registration 
fees etc) to nil. In the latter instance there are generally two categories.  All costs, including salary, are either externally funded or the 
monies are recouped through charging consultancy fees. 

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

Agribusiness and Regions

$2 164

$7 425

$22 905

$4 354

$19 104

Belgium

China

China; 
Hong Kong; 
Japan

China

China

Invited to attend an invitation-only workshop by the Joint  
Research Centre of the European Union Commission and made 
contribution on Global Food Security. A foresight study was  
conducted that aimed to gain insight into the identification of  
research needs regarding global food supply and security  
expected by 2030.

Met with Shanghai Jiao Tong University to promote South  
Australian Agribusiness capabilities and strengthening  
relationships with Australia’s Chinese counterparts. The purpose 
of this meeting was to scope possible joint partnership/ 
collaboration with Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the Shanghai 
local government and industry focusing on areas of land, water, 
food and health.

Accompanied the South Australian Minister for Agriculture, Food 
and Fisheries to Fujian to follow up on the Memorandum of  
Understanding to further strengthen the South Australian  
Government’s relationship with the Fujian Government in China.

Attended with representatives of the PURUS Group’s trading 
platform to the China Resources Vanguard Group which  
operates the OLE retail formats across China. OLE is a high-end 
boutique retail group which is an ideal trading platform for South  
Australia’s premium food and wine products.

PIRSA led an industry delegation from the agriculture, food and 
wine sectors. The delegation attended the SIAL and met with a 
number of Chinese organisations seeking to develop trade and 
investment relationships with South Australian companies.  
Meeting with Chinese Government officials further developed 
the South Australian Shandong Sister State relationship. 
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1

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

Agribusiness and Regions

Biosecurity SA

Office of the Chief Executive

$4 025

$4 986

$64 963

$21 784

$2 090

Nil

Nil

$4 491

$8 902

$15 483

Denmark

Singapore

China; 
Hong Kong; 
Japan

Croatia

Italy

United 
Kingdom

United 
States of 
America

United 
States of 
America

Attended the Competitive Institute World Conference on 
Cluster Initiatives which included world renowned speakers as 
well as people with first-hand success in managing and operating 
within a cluster framework.

Attended the Global Ag Investment Forum and gained detailed 
understanding of the key issues addressing the global investment 
community. Introduced South Australia and connected with 
global investors to understand the complexities and influencing 
factors of global capital flows into agribusiness.

 Subtotal

Accompanied the South Australian Minister for Agriculture, Food 
and Fisheries to Fujian to follow up on the Memorandum of  
Understanding to further strengthen the South Australian  
Government’s relationship with the Fujian Government in China.

Invited to attend European Cooperation in Science and  
Technology (COST) Rabbit Genome Biology Network meeting 
and workshop.

Attended the 12th International Colloquium on Paratuberculosis 
(Johne’s disease). Visited the Instituto Zooprofilattice, the  
European Union Food Safety reference laboratory. 

Attended the 12th World Congress of Parasitic Plants 2013  
and gave a presentation on branched broomrape research plus 
biology and management of this species.

Presented at the joint 62nd Wildlife Disease Association  
Conference and 2013 meeting of the American Association of 
Wildlife Veterinarians on Eimeria as potential additional rabbit 
biocontrol agents.

Study tour of California and Florida increased awareness and 
preparedness of the high priority pest, Huanglongbing and its 
insect vectors. Investigated the technical and operational  
management of Huanglongbing and its vectors throughout these 
regions of the United States.

 Subtotal
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1

1

1

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

Office of the Chief Executive

Fisheries and Aquaculture

Rural Solutions SA

$8 812

$16 086

$25 689

$72 371

$7 380

$11 530

$18 910

Nil

China

China

United 
States of 
America

Indonesia

China

Bhutan

Met with Shanghai Jiao Tong University to promote South  
Australian agribusiness capabilities and strengthen relationships 
with Australia’s Chinese counterparts. The purpose of this  
meeting was to scope possible joint partnership/collaboration 
with Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the Shanghai local  
government and industry focusing on areas of land, water, food 
and health.

Led and supported the agribusiness trade mission and met with 
a number of Chinese organisations seeking to develop trade and 
investment relationships with South Australian companies.  
Meetings with Chinese Government officials further developed 
the South Australian Shandong Sister State relationship.

Attended the G’Day USA and was a representative of the South 
Australian Government at events and industry meetings. Events 
included the Wine Australia Trade Show, G’Day USA Outlook 
Luncheon, G’Day USA Gala Dinner. Also met with World Bank 
Water Policy officials.

 Subtotal

Invited to participate in a technical fisheries management work-
shop to assist the Indonesian Ministry of Marine Affairs and 
Fisheries to improve and reform fisheries management planning 
processes, using best practice examples of fisheries management 
frameworks in South Australia. The workshops covered  
contemporary fisheries management frameworks, harvest  
strategies, policies and institutional arrangement used by PIRSA 
to manage South Australian fisheries resources and applied these 
to the Indonesian context.

Attended as a member of the Ministerial delegation in the  
agribusiness trade mission. Participated in the 9th China  
International Fisheries Expo promoting South Australia’s leader-
ship and strengths in seafood and aquaculture research and  
positioning South Australia as a partner in the production and 
supply of premium and sustainable seafood.

 Subtotal

Delivered a five-day irrigation management course to a group 
of Bhutanese civil engineers. 
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2

1

1

1

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

Rural Solutions SA

Aquatic Sciences

Nil

$0

$3 863

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

$3 995

Jordan

China

Costa Rica

Fiji

Mexico

Philippines

South 
Africa

Finalised and completed obligations for the Australian Centre 
for International Agricultural Research contract agreement.

 Subtotal

Part of a group mission with Flinders University academics who 
participated in a marine biotechnology symposium where it  
highlighted SARDI’s capabilities in marine research and food 
development as well as regulatory environment. Had discussions 
with companies investing in developing research to support their 
investment into the seaweed industry in the south-east. Also 
met with researchers interested in collaborating on developing a 
marine biotechnology industry in South Australia.

Attended the 11th International Crustacean Society Conference 
and gave a presentation on “Large-scale patterns in puerulus 
settlement and links to fishery recruitment in the southern rock 
lobster (Jasus edwardsii), across south-eastern Australia.

Attended a training workshop “Environmental Perspectives of 
Deep Sea Minerals” and presented a talk on “Lessons learned, 
strengths and challenges of environmental impact assessment 
process carried out for Solwara 1 – perspectives for improving 
the process in the Pacific”.

Attended the 10th International Conference and Workshop 
on Lobster Biology and Management. Gave a presentation on 
“Spatial management of a rock lobster resource under a quota 
system; biological, fishery and economic considerations”.

Met with academics from the University of Philippines, local  
government officials and Bureau of Fisheries officials and  
discussed potential seaweed research and development projects, 
the commercialisation pathway and potential funding. Field visits 
included touring and evaluation of potential algal production and 
mariculture sites.

Attended 2nd International Conference on Fish Telemetry and 
presented a paper on the performance of acoustic receivers and 
its application for scientific monitoring. Met and exchanged ideas 
with internationally recognised scientists working with accoustic 
telementry and ecologists on white sharks.

South Australian Research and Development Institute (SARDI)



66

P I R S A  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 3 - 1 4

1

1

1

2

1

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

SARDI: Aquatic Sciences

SARDI: Food Safety and Innovation

SARDI: Livestock and Farming Systems

Nil

Nil

Nil

$3 612

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

United 
States of 
America

United 
States of 
America

Canada

Czech 
Republic

China

Norway

Singapore

United 
States of 
America

Presented the Great Australian Bight Research Program to 
BP’s Marine Network, to the Harte Research Institute and to 
BP Westlake Campus. Met and liaised with BP team members 
and subject matter experts.

Attended two short courses on oil spill responses at the  
International Oil Spill Conference 2014. Gave a presentation 
on the Great Australian Bight Research Program. 

Visited and undertook training at the University of Alberta as 
part of an international research collaboration for a Pork  
Cooperative Research Centre funded research project.  
Researchers at the university are world-leaders in pig  
reproduction and assisted with training and analysis of tissue 
samples using EmbryoGENE micro-array technology.

Attended the 2nd Large Animal Models of Neurodegenerative 
Diseases Conference. Invited to speak and presented results 
of research work.

Invited to present on “Gut microbiota and their relationship  
to feed utilisation and performance in broilers” at the  
International Symposium on Nutrition and Poultry Gut 
Health.

Participated in and provided specialist technical support to an 
Australian Dept of Agriculture representative during a series 
of Codex meetings. The meetings were on methods for the 
determination of marine biotoxins, histamine in fish, and the 
development of a standard and code of practice for scallops. 

Assisted in the delivery of a training workshop to the  
Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority, Singapore. Topics covered 
included supply chain analysis, seafood safety and shelf-life  
assessment, current trends and opportunities in packaging. 

Delivered a workshop on Statistical Process Improvement of 
the Microbiology of Foods at the Annual Conference of the 
International Association for Food Protection. Presented  
research findings from the E. coli 0157 Risk Assessment that 
was being undertaken by SARDI and Meat and Livestock 
Australia and visited Rutger’s University to discuss current 
research projects and opportunities to collaborate. 
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1

1

1

1

1

1

2

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

SARDI: Livestock and Farming Systems

SARDI: Sustainable Systems

$5 230

Nil

Nil

$2 290

Nil

$3 477

$9 728

Germany: 
Ireland: 
United 
Kingdom

Norway; 
United 
Kingdom

Canada

China

China

China

China

Visited and recorded operations of a model non-confinement 
piggery for distribution to Australian pork producers via online 
seminars. Presented eight seminars to pork producers to  
broadcast our research outcomes. 

Deposited the first consignment of Australian pasture seed, 
sourced from the Australian Pastures Genebank maintained at 
SARDI in the Svalbard Global Seed Vault. Part of delegation of  
curators from other plant genetic resource collections and 
Federal Government representatives at the 6th anniversary of 
the Global Seed Vault opening. Also visited the Millennium Seed 
Bank at Kew Gardens and raised awareness as custodian of the 
Australian Pasture Genebank and reinforce Australia’s obligations 
under the International Treaty for Food and Agriculture.

Undertook an agreed work program as part of SARDI’s 
contractual agreement with the Grains Research and  
Development Corporation project “Expanding the use of pulses 
in the southern region”. Visited a number of research facilities 
and attended various forums including the Canadian Pulse  
Technical Symposium and met with pulse researchers and  
pulse industry representative with the aim of developing project 
linkages and potential future research collaborations.

Attended the International Congress of Plant Pathology. Invited 
to present a paper on Molecular Diagnostics for Decision-Making 
by Growers.

Invited to present paper at the 2nd Global Root Health Forum. 
The paper presented was on “Assessment of root growth in soil 
using a quantitative DNA assay”.

Collaborative work on cereal yield potential, water and nitrogen 
use efficiency. Included visits to field trials, growers’ fields, design 
of experiments, data analysis and supervision of PhD student.

Visited research facilities and equipment used in the oat  
breeding program at the Zhangjiakou Institute of Agricultural 
Research. Continued discussions about a collaborative program 
to bring Chinese technical officers to SARDI to learn techniques 
used in the National Oat Breeding Program.
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1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

SARDI: Sustainable Systems

Nil

Nil

$4 733

$1 932 

$2 262

$3 477

Nil

$4 405

$1 664

India

India

Italy

Italy

Norway

Peru

South 
Africa

South 
Africa

Spain

Participated in an integration workshop with colleagues from  
disciplines of climate science, crop modelling and social  
researchers. Led section of the workshop on climate and  
decision analysis.

Oversaw and assisted with work on pulse drought adaptation 
field experiments and that experimental protocols had been 
correctly interpreted plus trained local staff in the utilisation of 
monitoring equipment.

Joined scientists and policy makers from North and South 
America, Asia, Europe and Africa to evaluate methods and  
technologies for closing yield gaps. Gaps between potential crop 
yield and actual yield in farmers’ fields needed to be quantified 
and its causes determined to improve crop production.

Attended the 1st International Barley Leaf Diseases Workshop 
and presented a paper on barley diseases in South Australia. 

Attended the International Organisation for Biological and 
Integrated Control of Noxious Animals and Plants Conference 
on Slugs and Snails. Gained new insights, directions and research 
contacts for the snail management project funded by the Grains 
Research and Development Corporation.

Invited lecturer in an intensive course on crop ecophysiology  
for professionals and advanced students with the National  
Meteorological Service and the Universidad La Molina. Visited the 
International Potato Centre including the remote sensing and day 
length manipulation facilities.

Attended the Sixth International Congress of Nematology  
Conference. Presented a talk about the use of free living  
nematodes as indicators of biological soil health.

Inspected and audited the Fruit Fly South Africa production  
facility with the intention of approving the facility for importation 
of sterile male Ceratitis capitata for use in South Australia’s fruit 
fly eradication programs.

Attended the 7th International Workshop on Grapevine Downy 
and Powdery Mildew and presented a paper on the current 
knowledge of fungicide resistance of these pathogens in  
Australia.
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1

1

1

1

1

1

EMPLOYEES DESTINATION PURPOSE AGENCY COST1

SARDI: Sustainable Systems

Strategy and Engagement

$6 360

Nil

$2 892

$5 220

$65 140

$16 100

$16 669

$32 769

$269 636

Thailand

United 
Kingdom

United 
States of 
America

United 
States of 
America

China; 
Hong 
Kong; 
Japan

United 
States of 
America

Attended the International Atomic Energy Agency 2nd  
Cooperative Research Project meeting on “Use of symbiotic 
bacteria to reduce mass-rearing costs and increase mating  
success in selected fruit pests to support Sterile Insect  
Technology application”. Also attended the 9th International  
Symposium on Fruit Flies of Economic Importance.

Four-week internship at Rothamsted Research. Evaluated new 
sensing technologies for in-field surveillance of plant pathogens. 
Skills obtained will be valuable to Cooperative Research Centre 
for Plant Biosecurity project “New tools for field grains  
surveillance and diagnostics of high priority exotic pests”.

Oversaw commencement of agreed biosecurity research  
work for the Grape and Wine Research and Development 
Corporation Project SAR 1205 “Developing a threat-specific 
contingency plan for the exotic disease angular leaf scorch” at 
the Cornell University New York Agricultural Experiment Station.

Invited to present two oral papers at the annual American 
Society of Enology and Viticulture Symposium, covering the use 
of recycled water in viticulture and vineyard responses to the 
Australian Millennium drought. 

 Subtotal

Accompanied the Minister of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries to 
lead and support the food and wine business delegation.  
Maintained the momentum behind the Memorandum of  
Understanding with the objective to further strengthen the 
South Australian Government’s relationship with the Fujian  
Government in China.

Attended G’Day USA and was a representative of the South 
Australian Government at events and industry meetings. Events 
included the Wine Australia Trade Show, G’Day USA Outlook 
Luncheon, G’Day USA Gala Dinner. 

Subtotal

TOTAL 
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APPENDIX 4
Freedom of Information

PIRSA publishes a FOI Statement under Section 9 of the Freedom of Information Act 1991 on its website.  
It is available at http://www.pir.sa.gov.au/pirsa/about_pirsa/governance/freedom_of_information
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APPENDIX 5
Industry Participation Policy

It is noted that PIRSA had no contracts that triggered the Industry Participation Policy in 2013-14.
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APPENDIX 6
Statement of Aboriginal Reconciliation

PIRSA acknowledges Aboriginal peoples’ connections to land and sea country, which has been  
strengthened over tens of thousands of years. We respect Aboriginal peoples’ heritage, cultures and  
connection to Country and acknowledge the ongoing impact of colonisation. PIRSA also recognises the 
resilience of Aboriginal peoples and supports communities’ aspirations for a positive future. 

PIRSA is an inclusive workplace and strives for a high level of cultural competency, so our relationships 
with Aboriginal people and organisations are considerate and sustainable, and our services are responsive 
and equitable. 

PIRSA’s formal Commitment to Reconciliation was expressed through its first Reconciliation Statement 
and Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP); which was launched in May 2014.

The RAP is set out to guide PIRSA’s Reconciliation work through strategies and actions intended to result 
in positive and enduring outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people. 

A PIRSA Engagement Strategy has been drafted and is due for adoption in early 2014-15.

PIRSA understands and respects that Aboriginal interests in South Australia are significant and important 
to our future as an agency of the SA Government. We are focused on working with State and  
Commonwealth agencies and their initiatives to support Reconciliation and economic participation 
through initiatives such as those which are set out herein. 

Aboriginal Employment

PIRSA continues to access the Government Aboriginal Employment Register as vacancies arise.  

Aboriginal Scholarship Program

PIRSA has sought to make a difference to Aboriginal people by financing an Aboriginal Scholarship Program 
that expresses our core values of equity and social justice. One of its aims is to attract Aboriginal people 
to PIRSA as an employer of choice and industry partner. The scholarship is facilitated through the  
University of Adelaide. 

While preference is given to students who are studying disciplines specifically relevant to PIRSA’s  
businesses, it is also made available more generally. The first scholarship recipient studied a combined  
Arts/Law degree.

SARDI Science Bursary for Aboriginal Students

PIRSA supports Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander students in post-graduate study in the agriculture,  
fisheries or forestry science fields through the inaugural SARDI Science Bursary for Aboriginal Students.

In 2013-14, the bursary was awarded during National Reconciliation Week to a Flinders University  
aquaculture honours student, whose research will help to maintain the quality of premium South  
Australian oysters. 

The bursary is offered annually for a graduate to undertake post-graduate study in the agriculture, fisheries 
or forestry science fields at a tertiary institution in Australia.
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Cultural Awareness Training - Anangu Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara  
(APY) Lands 

Cultural awareness training and Pitjantjatjara language studies continue to be fundamental prerequisites for 
employees working on the Anangu Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara (APY) Lands. Relevant training is provided 
as required.

Engaging with Aboriginal People and Communities 

A PIRSA engagement toolkit has been developed and includes a component for interacting with diverse 
interest groups and communities. Engagement strategies for Aboriginal communities and individuals have 
been guided by a set of success factors nationally recognised as best practice for governments to involve 
Aboriginal people and communities; taken from the ‘Critical Success Factors for Engaging Indigenous 
People and Communities in Natural Resource Management and Primary Industries’. 

Consultancy Services through Rural Solutions SA

Rural Solutions SA is experienced in working with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples on social, 
economic and business development. It works with communities with diverse levels of experience and 
exposure to business management and can provide detailed and accurate assessment of business  
opportunities and provide new skills, or improve existing skills in business management through training 
and mentoring services. Rural Solutions SA also provides strategic planning, business planning and feasibility 
plans for Indigenous communities and businesses. 

Aboriginal Employee Assistance 

PIRSA provides an Aboriginal Employee Assistance Program. The services are available for Aboriginal 
people as well as non-Aboriginal people. The service provider gives counselling services generally and has 
specialisations in counselling and healing for Aboriginal people and non-Aboriginal people working with 
Aboriginal employees. 
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APPENDIX 7
Contacts
Primary Industries and Regions South Australia 
Level 15, Grenfell Centre, 25 Grenfell St, Adelaide 
GPO Box 1671, Adelaide SA 5001

Receptions:  L14, 25 Grenfell St, Adelaide. Phone (08) 8226 0900 
  Fax (08) 8226 0027
Website: http://www.pir.sa.gov.au

PIRSA has about 30 sites across regional South Australia and the metropolitan area.  
Contact details are on PIRSA’s website and in telephone directories. 

At 30 June 2014:

ENQUIRY

Minister for Agriculture,
Food and Fisheries
Minister for Forests

Minister for Regional  
Development

Minister for Sustainability,  
Environment and  
Conservation
Minister for Water and  
the River Murray
Minister for Aboriginal  
Affairs and Reconciliation

Chief Executive

Agribusiness & Regions and  
Fisheries and Aquaculture

Deputy Chief Executive

PHONE, FAX AND LOCATIONS

Phone (08) 8226 1210 fax (08) 8226 0844
Level 12, Terrace Towers,  
178 North Terrace, Adelaide

Phone (08) 8226 1300 fax (08) 8226 0316
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell Street, Adelaide

Phone (08) 8463 5680 fax (08) 8463 5681
Level 9, Chesser House,  
91 – 97 Grenfell St, Adelaide 

Phone (08) 8226 0162 fax (08) 8226 0320
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St,  Adelaide

Phone (08) 8226 0231 
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St, Adelaide

Phone (08) 8226 0851, fax (08) 8226 0320
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St, Adelaide

CONTACT

Leon Bignell MP

Geoff Brock MP

Ian Hunter MLC

Scott Ashby

Trent Mader
Group Executive Director

Don Frater
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ENQUIRY

Biosecurity SA,  
Rural Solutions SA and SARDI

Fisheries and Aquaculture 

South Australian Research and 
Development Institute (SARDI)

Rural Solutions SA

Biosecurity SA

Forestry

Strategy and Engagement 

PHONE, FAX AND LOCATIONS

Phone (08) 8463 6925 fax (08) 8226 0320
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St, Adelaide

Phone (08) 8226 3994 fax (08) 8226 0320
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St, Adelaide

Phone (08) 8303 9398 fax (08) 8303 9403
Plant Research Centre, Gate 2B,  
Hartley Grove, Urrbrae

Phone (08) 8226 2346 fax (08) 8463 3336
Level 16, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St, Adelaide

Phone (08) 8207 7943 fax (08) 8207 7852
Level 2, 33 Flemington St,  
Glenside

Phone (08) 8463 6139
Level 15, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St, Adelaide

Phone (08) 8226 0336 fax (08) 8226 0320
Level 17, Grenfell Centre,  
25 Grenfell St, Adelaide

CONTACT

Andrew Johnson
Group Executive  
Director

Mehdi Doroudi
Executive Director 

Pauline Mooney
Executive Director

Daniel Casement 
Executive Director

Will Zacharin
Executive Director

Stuart West
Executive Director

Jo Collins 
Executive Director
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APPENDIX 8
Financial Overview

Account Payment Performance 2013-14
Treasurer’s Instruction 11 under the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 requires all undisputed accounts to be 
paid within 30 days of the date the invoice is first received by the agency (or service provider) unless there is a 
discount or a written agreement between the agency and the creditor.

As indicated in the table below, PIRSA paid 98% of invoices in 2013-14 on time.

Contractual Arrangements
In 2009-10, PIRSA entered a contract with Clinical Laboratories Pty Ltd (t/a Gribbles) for the provision of a  
veterinary diagnostic service to the livestock (including apiary and aquatic) industries and data on the  
incidence and control of diseases and residues in livestock or livestock products. The contract is for an initial 
term of three years (with extension options) and has a total value of $4.5 million (or $900 000 per annum). 

Fraud
There were no instances of fraud in 2013-14.

%

97

2

1

$’000

166 824

3 925

669

%

98

1

1

Number

24 242

299

213

Paid within 30 calendar days or less

Paid within 31 to 60 calendar days

Paid greater than 60 calendar days

Particulars Accounts paid Amount paid
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The tables below summarise the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position and statement of 
cash flows of the department for the year ended 30 June 2014. The results are compared with the 2013–14 budget and 
the results for the previous year. The full detailed financial statements and notes to the accounts of the department are 
presented in Appendix 8.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

The table above shows that for the financial year ending 30 June 2014, PIRSA’s net result was an operating surplus of 
$23.7 million, which was $24.3 million favourable compared to budget. This is mainly the result of the timing of revenue 
and expenditure relating to the South Australian River Murray Sustainability (SARMS) program and other major regional 
grant programs across financial years. 

Major variations included:

Total expenses in 2013–14 were $11.5 million lower than budget, primarily as a result of the timing of expenditure of 
major regional grant programs, including the SARMS program. 

Total income was $11.8 million higher than budget, mainly as a result of the timing of revenue recognition for the  
Commonwealth-funded SARMS program. In addition, there was higher than anticipated revenue from SA Government.

Total expenses in 2013–14 were $6.3 million higher than in 2012–13, primarily as a result of an increase in expenditure 
on the Marine Parks Commercial Fisheries Voluntary Catch/Effort Reduction program in 2013–14. This was partially offset 
by a reduction in major regional grant programs across financial years, and a reduction in supplies and services costs.
Total income in 2013–14 increased by $25.8 million from 2012–13, largely due to the funding recognised under the  
Commonwealth National Partnerships Agreement for the SARMS program. 

Expenses

Income

Net cost of  
providing services

Revenues from  
SA Government

Payments to  
SA Government

Net result  
Surplus/(deficit)

Other  
comprehensive 
income

Total  
comprehensive 
result

2013-14
Budget

$000’s(a)

189 814

92 592

97 222

96 647

-

(575)

-

(575)

2013-14
Actual
$000’s

178 312

104 422

73 890

97 582

-

23 692

-

23 692

2012-13
Actual
$000’s

 
172 045

78 599

93 446

95 263

(4 100)

(2 283)

2 558

275

(a)  The 2013-14 budget figures have been adjusted from the figures published in the 2014–15 Agency Statements as a result  
 of post budget approvals.
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Statement of Financial Position

Total assets were $5.0 million higher than budget, primarily as a result of an increase in cash. This is largely  
associated with the timing of receipts and expenditure of the SARMS program and the lower than anticipated level 
of activity under the Commonwealth’s Farm Finance Concessional Loan Scheme.

Total liabilities were $17.5 million below budget, primarily due to a lower than budgeted level of borrowings.  
This mainly relates to the lower than anticipated level of activity under the Commonwealth’s Farm Finance  
Concessional Loan Scheme.
  

Current assets

Non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

2013-14
Budget

$000’s(a)

141 407

115 315

256 722

72 161

24 257

96 418

160 304

2013-14
Actual
$000’s

140 277

121 465

261 742

45 944

32 930

78 874

182 868

2012-13
Actual

$000’s (b)

 
117 226

113 580

230 806

47 091

24 539

71 630

159 176

(a)  The 2013–14 budget figures have been adjusted from the figures published in the 2014–15 Agency Statements as a  
 result of post budget approvals.   
(b)  The 2012–13 actual figures have been revised relative to those published in the 2012–13 Annual Report due to the  
 recognition of prior period adjustments. 
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Statement of Cash Flows

The net cash flow provided by operating activities was $16.6 million higher than the budget, primarily reflecting the 
changes in the timing of receipts and expenditure related to the SARMS program and other major regional grant 
programs, together with the timing and scale of revenues and expenditures associated with partnered research 
activities and consulting services.

The net cash flow provided by investing and financing activities was $3.3 million below budget, mainly reflecting the 
lower than anticipated level of activity under the Commonwealth’s Farm Finance Concessional Loan Scheme.

Cash flows from  
operating activities

Payments

Receipts

Net cash flows from  
Government

Net cash (used in)/provided 
by operating activities

Cash flows from investing  
and financing activities

Payments

Receipts

Net cash (used in)/investing 
and financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase 
in cash held

Cash at 1 July

Cash at 30 June

2013-14
Budget

$000’s(a)

(182 987)

92 601

96 647

6 261

(22 220)

32 439

10 219

16 480

84 761

101 241

2013-14
Actual
$000’s

(181 422)

106 723

97 582

22 883

(13 519)

20 412

6 893

29 776

84 761

114 537

2012-13
Actual
$000’s

 

(173 808)

82 517

91 163

(128)

(10 104)

7 422

(2 682)

(2 810)

87 571

84 761

(a) The 2013–14 budget figures have been adjusted from the figures published in the 2014–15 Agency Statements as a result  
 of post budget approvals.
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Property, Plant and Equipment Assets
PIRSA owns and manages property, plant and equipment assets valued at $103.9 million, including a number  
of large research centres across the State. PIRSA has an ongoing need to reinvest in building, equipment and  
information technology to produce its service delivery outcomes.

Land and buildings and infrastructure assets represent 86 per cent of the agency’s capital investments.

Property, Plant and Equipment as at 30 June 2014

In 2013–14 the total value of property, plant and equipment decreased by $2.3 million from $106.2 million to 
$103.9 million, primarily due to continuing depreciation and amortisation charges on the agency’s asset base,  
partially offset by acquisition of new assets.




















































































































































































































